

Natural Resources Conservation Service

> Conservation Engineering Division

Small Watershed Hydrology

WinTR-55 User Guide



Issued January 2009

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, DC 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Preface	The WinTR–55 Small Watershed Hydrology Computer Program Version 1.00 has been developed to operate within the Windows [®] operating system. This guide assists the new or occasional user prepare input and run the program.
	This version of WinTR–55 is improved over the 1992 version with the fol- lowing features:
	 inclusion of Windows[®] interface
	• use of WinTR–20 for calculations
	The program and supporting materials may be downloaded from the Web site http://www.wsi.nrcs.usda.gov/products/W2Q/H&H/Tools_Models/ WinTR55.html. The materials available include a Frequently Asked Ques tions file, a tutorial, and other training material.
Acknowledgments	Please e-mail any problems to the WinTR–55 development team at NRCS-TR55@usda.gov or contact the NRCS hydraulic engineer in your state.
	WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology was developed by:
	 Ralph Roberts, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Research Service, MD Jolyne Lea, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conser-
	vation Service, OR
	Laurel Foreman, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources
	Conservation Service, IA
	Helen Fox Moody, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, MD
	Quan D. Quan, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Con-
	servation Service, MD
	William Merkel, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, MD
	 Karl Visser, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, TX
	Claudia Hoeft, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Con- servation Service, Washington, DC
	Al McNeill, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conser-
	vation Service, SC John McClung, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Con- servation Service, AR
	Tony Funderburk , U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, TX
	Jon Werner, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conser-
	vation Service, retired Roger Cronshey, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources
	Conservation Service, retired Don Woodward, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, retired
	Many volunteer users from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the Natu- ral Resources Conservation Service, and the private sector provided extensive testing and comments. They beloed make this version a much

better product.

extensive testing and comments. They helped make this version a much

Small Watershed Hydrology

Contents

Introduction	
Historical background	1
Program description	1
Model overview	1
Capabilities and limitations	2
Model input	
Minimum data requirements	
User responsibility	
Watershed sub-areas and reaches	
Welcome to WinTR–55 window	
WinTR–55 Main Window	
Land Use Details window	
Land Use Summary for Sub-area window	
Custom Curve Number window	
Time of Concentration Details window	
Reach Data window	
Reach Flow Path window	
Structure Data window	
Storm Data window	
Custom Rainfall Distribution window	
Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph window	
Graphics windows	
Running WinTR–55	
WinTR-55 processes	
WinTR-20 processes	
Viewing Output	
Output Definition window	
Plotting and viewing hydrographs	
Appendix A—Examples	

Appendix B—Equations

Apendix C—References

Tables

Table 1	WinTR–55 capabilities and limitations	2
Table 2	Sample watershed flows	3
Table 3	WinTR–55 file display	42
Table 4	WinTR-55 reports	44

Figures

Figure 1	WinTR-55 system schematic	2
Figure 2	Sample watershed schematic	3
Figure 3	Window entry features	4
Figure 4	Additional window entry features	5
Figure 5	Pipe outlet schematics	26
Figure 6	Short-tube flow assumption not valid	26
Figure 7	Weir outlet schematic	27

Windows

Window 1	Welcome to WinTR–55 window	6
Window 2	Help for Welcome to WinTR–55 window	7
Window 3	WinTR–55 Main Window	8
Window 4	WinTR–55 Main Window File menu	9
Window 5	WinTR–55 Main Window Options menu	9
Window 6	WinTR–55 Main Window ProjectData menu	10
Window 7	WinTR–55 Main Window GlobalData menu	10
Window 8	WinTR–55 Main Window Run menu	11
Window 9	WinTR–55 Main Window Help menu	11
Window 10	Land Use Details window	14
Window 11	Land Use Summary for Sub-area window	15
Window 12	Custom Curve Number window	16
Window 13	Land Use Details window with Custom Curve Number	17
Window 14	Time of Concentration Details window	18
Window 15	Reach Data window	20
Window 16	Channel Rating plot	22
Window 17	Reach Flow Path window	23
Window 18	Structure Data (pipe outlet) window	24
Window 19	Structure Data (weir outlet) window	27
Window 20	Structure Rating plot (pipe outlet)	28
Window 21	Structure Rating plot (weir outlet)	29
Window 22	Storm Data window	30
Window 23	Storm data for areas outside the United States	31
Window 24	Watersheds outside of the United States	31
Window 25	Differing state/county and storm data source example	32

Window 26	Custom Rainfall Distribution window	34
Window 27	Custom Rainfall Distribution plot	34
Window 28	Dimensionless unit hydrograph window	35
Window 29	Dimensionless unit hydrograph plot	36
Window 30	Typical Graphics window plot	37
Window 31	File Display window	41
Window 32	Output Definition window	42
Window 33	Output Graphics window	45
Window 34	Graphics window output plot	46
Window 35	Output plot zoom feature	47

Introduction

Historical background

Technical Release 55 (TR–55) Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds was first issued by the Soil Conservation Service (SCS) in January 1975 as a simplified procedure for calculating storm runoff volume, peak rate of discharge, and storage volumes for storm water management structures. TR–55 was applicable only for the SCS Type II rainfall distribution and required the user to perform manual calculations.

In September 1986, SCS released a major revision to TR–55. This version included three additional rainfall distributions (Type I, IA, and III) and defined the velocity method of computing time of concentration by splitting the time of concentration flow path into three distinct flow segments for sheet flow, shallow concentrated flow, and channel flow. A computer program was also released that automated the computations. The wide acceptance and use of TR–55 by public and private users generated a great deal of feedback used by SCS to identify where improvements could be made in the procedures and the computer program.

A WinTR–55 work group was formed in the spring of 1998 to modernize and revise the technical release and the computer software. The following changes were made to the program:

- The source code was upgraded to Microsoft[®] Visual Basic[®] 6.0.
- Data input philosophy was changed and the program revised to use a hydrograph computational routine instead of generalized tables and graphs.
- A Windows[®] interface and output post-processor were developed.

As a result, the hydrograph generation capability of the software was greatly enhanced as the user can now flood route hydrographs through stream reaches and reservoirs.

The availability and technical capabilities of the personal computer have significantly changed the philosophy of problem solving for the engineer. Computer availability eliminated the need for the TR–55 manual methods, thus the graphs and tables in the older documents have been eliminated.

This user guide covers the procedures used in and the operation of the WinTR–55 computer program. Part 630 of the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) National Engineering Handbook (NEH) provides detailed information on NRCS hydrology and is the technical reference for this document. Appendix C, which lists all the references, contains a list of the NEH Part 630 chapters and their subjects. Users who are not familiar with NRCS hydrologic procedures should refer to the appropriate chapters for background information and the details of procedural techniques.

Program description

WinTR-55 is a single-event rainfall-runoff, small watershed hydrologic model. The model generates hydrographs from both urban and agricultural areas and at selected points along the stream system. Hydrographs are routed downstream through channels and/or reservoirs. Multiple sub-areas can be modeled within the watershed.

Model overview

A watershed consists of sub-areas (land areas) and reaches (major flow paths in the watershed). For each sub-area, a hydrograph is generated based on land and climate characteristics. Reaches are designated as either channel reaches, through which hydrographs are routed based on physical stream characteristics, or as storage reaches, through which hydrographs are routed based on reservoir storage and outlet characteristics. Sub-area and reach hydrographs are combined as needed to represent the accumulation of flow as water moves from the upland areas down through the watershed reach network. The watershed outlet represents the location at which all runoff from the watershed is accumulated.

WinTR-55 uses the WinTR-20 (Version 1.11) computational routine for generating, routing, and adding hydrographs. The WinTR-55 system is illustrated in figure 1. This figure shows the relationship between WinTR-55 and WinTR-20, as well as the file associations within the modeling system.

Figure 1 WinTR-55 system schematic

WinTR-55 System



Capabilities and limitations

WinTR-55 hydrology has the capacity to analyze watersheds that meet the criteria listed in table 1.

Variable	Limits
Minimum area	Minimum area is 0.01 acre. Carefully examine results from sub-areas less than 1 acre
Maximum area	25 square miles (6,500 ha)
Number of subwatersheds	1 to 10
Time of concentration for any sub-area	$0.1 \text{ hour} \le \text{Tc} \le 10 \text{ hours}$
Number of reaches	0 to 10
Types of reaches	Channel or structure
Reach routing	Muskingum-Cunge
Structure routing	Storage-Indication
Structure types	Pipe or weir
Structure trial sizes	1 to 3
Rainfall depth	Default or user-defined 0 to 50 inches (0 to 1,270 mm)
Rainfall distributions	NRCS Type I, IA, II, III, NM60, NM65, NM70, NM75, or user-defined (See appendix A, example 4)
Rainfall duration	24-hour
Dimensionless unit hydrograph	Standard peak rate factor 484, or user-defined (e.g., Delmarva—see appendix A, example 3)
Antecedent runoff condition	2 (average)

Model input

The user enters data into WinTR–55 through a series of windows. Figure 2 illustrates a sample watershed schematic. Figure 3 shows various features of the input windows. Data entry is required only on windows applicable to the watershed being evaluated.

Minimum data requirements

While WinTR-55 can be used for watersheds with up to 10 sub-areas and up to 10 reaches, the simplest run involves only a single sub-area. Data required can be directly entered on the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. These data include:

- Project Identification Data
 - —User
 - -State
 - County
 - Project
 - Subtitle
- Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph
- Storm Data Source
- Rainfall Distribution Identifier
- Sub-area Entry and Summary
 - Sub-area Name
 - Sub-area Description
 - -Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet
 - Area (ac. or sq. mi.)
 - Weighted curve number (CN)
 - Time of concentration (Tc)

The user should note that sub-area entry and summary data can be entered directly into the table on the main window, or computed elsewhere within WinTR–55. If detailed information is developed through the other windows, the computational results are displayed here.

User responsibility

Model results can be sensitive to input data. The user must ensure that all input data (whether entered directly or implied through default values for blank data fields) are appropriate for the watershed and conditions being analyzed.

Watershed sub-areas and reaches

Modeling watersheds properly using WinTR-55 requires understanding the relationship between watershed sub-areas and reaches within the computer program. Figure 2 and table 2 show a typical watershed with multiple sub-areas and reaches.

Reaches define flow paths through the watershed to its outlet. Each sub-area and reach contribute flow to the upstream end of a receiving reach or to the outlet.



Table 2	Sample watershed flows				
Sub-area	Flows into upstream end	Reach	Flows into upstream end		
Area I	Reach A	Reach A	Reach C		
Area II	Reach C	Reach B	Reach C		
Area III	Reach C	Reach C	Outlet		
Area IV	Reach B	Reach D	Outlet		
Area V	Reach C	Reach E	Outlet		
Area VI	Reach E				
Area VII	Outlet				
Area VIII	Outlet				
Area IX	Reach D				
Area X	Outlet				

Accumulated runoff from all sub-areas routed through the watershed reach system, by definition, is flow at the watershed outlet.

Figures 3 and 4 show some of the features available in the window entry, with the features labeled.



Feature	Function
Window title	Displays title of the window
Tool buttons	Quick access to functions or windows
Entry box	Enter data into box
Option buttons	Select one option of several
Entry grid	Enter data into cells
Menu bar with pulldown	Select menu options with further sub-options
Combo entry box	Select an entry or type in new data
Display data	Display only, cannot enter data into a display area
Status bar	Displays status information: filename, date, time

Figure 4 Additional window entry features



Feature	Function
Check box	Click on box to turn an option on or off
Button	Click to access named function

Welcome to WinTR-55 window

Purpose

The **Welcome to WinTR–55** window (window 1) displays introductory information. To skip this window in the future, check the box in the lower left hand corner. Additional help can be obtained by clicking on the **New User?** button which opens the help for **Welcome to WinTR–55** window (window 2).

Buttons *Exit program* Click **Exit program** to exit program.

New User? Click <u>New User</u>? to display introductory help text. Start Click <u>Start</u> to begin using WinTR–55 software.



Window 2 Help for Welcome to WinTR–55 window



WinTR-55 Main Window

Purpose

The user enters basic watershed data on the **WinTR-55 Main Window** (window 3). Other windows, data, and settings are accessed through the menus, buttons, and boxes on the main window (illustrated in windows 4–9). As other data input windows are closed, the program returns to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Window 3 WinTh	R–55 Main Window						
📟 WinTR-55	Main Window					X	
File Options Pr	ojectData GlobalData	Run Help					
28.2	Тс 🟊 🌾 👻	外 ム 🗶 🏢	8	1			
	inTR-55 Sma			-			
Project Identification		ii wulersh	eu ny	urology			
User: KKV		tate: Illinois			-		
Project: Minor Lo	ike Detention Check C	ounty: Champaign	_		•		
Subtitle: Analyze	detention basin with histor	ical storm	Exec	cution Date: 4	/16/2002		
 Acres Square Miles 	Char Data Characteristic and the second						
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description	Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)		
Minor Lake	0.25 acre lots	basin 💌	25.00	75	0.450		
	,	Project Area:	25 (ac)	·	·		

Window 4 WinTR–55 Main Window File menu

🔤 Win	iTR-5	5 Main Win	dow			
File Op	ptions	ProjectData	GlobalData	Run	Help	_
New						
Gopen	ı					
Save						
Save	As					
🖺 Page	Setup					
Exit						
C:\Do C:\Do	ocumen ocumen	its and Setting its and Setting	s\quan.quan s\quan.quan	Applic Applic	ation Data\WinTR-55\Example1_A.w55 ation Data\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Example2-large.w55 ation Data\WinTR-55\Example1_C.w55 ation Data\WinTR-55\Example1_B.w55	

Menu

The menu bar is located at the top of the WinTR-55 Main Window, just below the dark blue window title.

Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation		
File	New	Create a new input file		
	Open	Open an existing input file		
	Save	Save current input data using current filename		
	SaveAs	Save current input data with different filename		
	Page Setup	Setup printer for page output		
	Exit Exit software			
		List of recently accessed files that provides a shortcut to any of them		

Window 5 WinTR-55 Main Window Options menu



Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation			
Options	Units	Allows user to declare measurement system: English or Metric.			
Clear Recent Files		Clear the list of recently opened files at the bottom of the File menu			

.

Window 6 WinTR-55 Main Window ProjectData menu

INTE V	VinTR-5	5 Main Win	ow	
File	Options	ProjectData	GlobalData Run Help	
		E Land Use I Tc Time of Cc Structure I Reach Dat	centration Details ata	
		🏆 Reach Flow	Path	

Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation
ProjectData	Land Use Details	Open Land Use Details window
	Time of Concentration Details	Open Time of Concentration Details window
	Structure Data	Open Structure Data window
	Reach Data	Open Reach Data window
	Reach Flow Path	Display Reach Flow Path schematic window

Window 7 WinTR-55 Main Window GlobalData menu

win win	nTR-5	5 Main Win	dow	
File O	ptions	ProjectData	GlobalData Run Help	
			道:Storm Data 所てCustom Rainfall Distributions Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph	

Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation
GlobalData	Storm Data	Open Storm Data window
	Custom Rainfall Distributions	Open Custom Rainfall Distributions window
	Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph	Open Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph window

Window 8 WinTR-55 Main Window Run menu

🚟 WinTR-5	i5 Main Window	
File Options	ProjectData GlobalD	Data Run Help
Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation

Window 9 WinTR-55 Main Window Help menu

Land V	VinTR-5	5 Main Win	dow			
File	Options	ProjectData	GlobalData	Run	Help	
					☑ Show WinTR-55 Welcome ∅ Help for WinTR-55 Main Window F1	
					About WinTR-55 System Information	

Menu item	Pulldown choice	Explanation			
Help	Show WinTR–55 Welcome	Display WinTR–55 Welcome window			
	Help for WinTR–55 Main Window F1	Display help			
	About WinTR-55	Display program version number and date			
	System Information	Display system information, such as operating system			

Buttons

The button bar near the top of the **WinTR-55 Main Window** provides a graphical shortcut for some common functions described in the preceding menu section.



Opens a previously created and saved WinTR-55 input data file.



Save

Saves the current data in the file named on the status bar (bottom left corner of window). This button is not available until some data have been entered. If the current data do not have a filename, a box allowing entry of a filename is displayed when **Save** is clicked.

Input Data Printout



Prints a brief report of data on the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Land Use Details

Displays **Land Use Details** window to enter or edit land use data by hydrologic soil group for any subarea.

Time of Concentration Details



Displays **Time of Concentration Details** window to enter or edit flow path information used to compute time of concentration for any sub-area.

Structure Data



Displays **Structure Data** window to enter or edit data for storage ponds with either a pipe or weir outlet.



Displays **Reach Data** window to enter or edit reach data for all reaches in the watershed.



Displays Reach Flow Path schematic.



ı 🔛

Displays **Storm Data** window to view or edit rainfall depths and frequency. The associated rainfall distribution may be changed.

Custom Rainfall Distribution





Displays **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph** window to enter or edit custom dimensionless unit hydrographs.





Uses currently entered WinTR–55 data reformatted into WinTR–20 input to run the WinTR–20 model. Results from WinTR–20 are then available to the WinTR– 55 program for output displays and/or reports. **Run WinTR–55** is not available until a minimum amount of data has been entered.





Gives the reports that are available for printing or viewing. **Output Definition** window is not available until data have been entered and a run has been completed.

Output Hydrographs



Views output hydrographs at various locations in the watershed. **Output Hydrographs** window is not available until a run has been completed.





Quick help provides context-sensitive help for most of the WinTR–55 user interface. Click the large yellow question mark (?) button to turn on the quick help. Clicking on any part of the window will display help information at the bottom of the window. While in help mode, a large question mark (?) is displayed next to the cursor. No data entry is allowed while in Help mode. Clicking ? a second time returns to the standard cursor.

Some help windows will not display completely with a 600×800 screen resolution. For better viewing, change the monitor's screen resolution to a higher setting such as 1024×768 .

Project identification data

The user enters the following information on the Project Identification Data portion of the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. Data to be entered are user name, project name, subtitle, and location of project by state and county. State and county names may be selected from pulldown menus. WinTR-55 can be used for locations outside of the United States by entering a name for the new location that is not on the pulldown state names list. This will cause the state and county labels to change to region and locale (window 24). State and county names supplied with the program cannot be edited. User-entered names can be edited. Entering a single letter jumps to the first match in the list.

Execution date

The execution date shown on the main window is the current date, or for a saved file, it is the date on which the file was saved.

Sub-areas are expressed in

Here, the user specifies which units are used for expressing drainage areas. If English units are used, the options are acres or square miles. If metric (SI) units are used, the options are hectares or square kilometers. The user specifies which system (English or Metric) is used to express drainage area sizes using the Options–Units menu items.

Dimensionless unit hydrograph

The default dimensionless unit hydrograph is the NRCS standard dimensionless unit hydrograph with a peak rate factor of 484 (NEH630.16). A different dimensionless unit hydrograph may be specified by selecting from the pulldown menu or by creating a new one through the **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph** window.

Storm data source

Upon opening WinTR–55, storm data used for the previous run is listed here. The storm data source listed on the **WinTR–55 Main Window** is not automatically changed when new state and county information are entered. It is very important that the storm data source displayed is the desired data.

WinTR–55 includes a database of 24-hour rainfall values for most of the United States. This data can be viewed or edited through the **Storm Data** window (window 22). Data for locations not found in the database are entered on the **Storm Data** window. User-entered values or modifications to the database values are indicated by a note User-provided custom storm data. Use of database values with no modifications is indicated by the appropriate state and county names being displayed as the **Storm Data** source.

Rainfall distribution identifier

Rainfall distribution is included as part of the rainfall database. However, a different rainfall distribution may be specified on the **Storm Data** window (window 22), or by defining a custom rainfall distribution and entering it on the **Custom Rainfall Distribution** window (window 26).

Sub-area entry and selection

Sub-area information is entered or edited on the subarea entry and summary table. Sub-area names are up to 10 characters long with at least one alphabetical character. A sub-area description (up to 25 characters) may also be included. The Sub-area Flows to Reach/ Outlet is used to describe the upper end of the reach into which the runoff from each sub-area flows on its way to the watershed outlet. The user enters the appropriate reach name (up to 10 alphanumeric characters) here, or selects from a pulldown menu if reaches are defined on the **Reach Data** window.

The reach name Outlet is reserved for the most downstream point of the watershed being evaluated and is always the final reach for every WinTR–55 run. Subarea drainage area (Area), weighted curve number (Weighted CN), and time of concentration (Tc) may be entered directly into this table or computed using more detailed information on the **Land Use Details** window and **Time of Concentration Details** window. Data entered directly into the table will be displayed in blue, while data computed within WinTR–55 will be displayed in green.

Double-clicking on a column entry within the Sub-area Entry and Summary table opens the appropriate data input window, **Land Use Details**, **Time of Concentration Details**, or **Reach Data**, for additional data entry or editing.

Total watershed area (Project Area) is displayed in the lower right hand corner of this table.

Status bar

The path and filename of the current data are displayed on the left side of the status bar at the bottom of the window. If no file name has been assigned to the current data, <new file> appears in this location. The remainder of the status bar contains the current date and time. The same status bar appears on all other large size data entry windows.

Land Use Details window

Purpose

The **Land Use Details** window (window 10) is used to edit and view the land use description for sub-areas with detailed land use data.

Data entry and selection

The vertical scroll bar on the right side of the window allows the user to locate and view any part of the land use list by dragging the scroll bar up or down to change the part of the cover description list that is displayed.

Scrolling from top to bottom may be time consuming since the table is long. Resizing the window to a larger window displays more lines of land cover. Clicking any Land Use Categories option button causes the displayed portion of the Cover Description list to jump directly to the beginning of that category's cover descriptions. The complete list of the Cover Descriptions for the Land Use category may be too long to display at one time. If that is the case, use the vertical scroll bar to scroll down and view additional cover descriptions.

Once the desired cover description is in view in the table, enter the areas in the appropriate Hydrologic Soil Group columns (A, B, C, or D). Multiple hydrologic soil group entries can be made for a single cover description.

Window 10 Land Use Details window

Land Use Details									
Sub-area Name									
Minor Lake	Clear		Lar	d Use	De	etails	5		
Land Use Categories									
🖲 Urban Area 🛛 🔿 Developing Urba	n C Cultivate	ed Agricultu	ire	C Other	Agric	ulture	C Ari	d Rangeland	
		5	Areal	(Acres) for	Hydrol	ogic Soi	Groups		
Cover Description	Condition	A	CN	в	CN	c	CN	D CI	N 🔺
kban Districts	Avg % Imperv								
Commercial & business	85		89		92		94	9	5
ndustrial	72		81		88		91	90	3
lesidential districts (by average lot size)	Avg % Imperv								
/8 acre (town houses)	65		77		85		90	9	2
I/4 acre	38		61	20.000	75		83	8	7
I/3 acre	30		57		72		81	8	6
1/2 acre	25		54		70		80	8	5
1 acre	20		51		68		79	8-	4
2 acre	12		46		65		77	8	2
Vestern Desert Urban Areas									
Vatural desert (pervious areas only)			63		77		85	8	8
Artifical desert landscaping			96		96		96	9	6
Project Area(ac) — Summary Screen	Sub-Area -					_			
20.00 • Off • On	Area (ac)	20	W/e	aighted CN:	75		Help .	<u>Cancel A</u> c	cept
20.00		1 20			11.0				
									8
									-
: C:\Documents and Settings\guan.guan\Appl					_	9/9/200		1:28 PM	

Click on the **Sub-area Name** combo box in the upper left corner to select a previously named sub-area and display its data. To enter a new sub-area, click in the combo box and type in a new name.

Summary information

The total watershed area accumulated from the subarea information is displayed near the bottom left of the window. This total includes all sub-areas whether the data for each were entered in the detailed land use description or as sub-areas on the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

The Summary Screen buttons provide a toggle for display of the **Land Use Summary for Sub-area** window (window 11). Click **On** to display the summary window, and click **Off** to close the summary window. Information on the summary window is given after this current window description ends.

The accumulated area and associated weighted CN for the current sub-area are displayed in the two boxes at the bottom center of the window. As additional areas are entered or deleted, the summary values change. If both boxes are blank, no detailed land use description data have been entered.

Buttons

<u>R</u>ename

<u>Rename</u> allows the user to rename the sub-area.

Clear

Clear clears all the currently displayed sub-area land use details.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that are clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

Window 11	Land use summary	for sub-area window
minuon 11	Lana ase summary	101 Sub area willaow

Land use for area 1	Area	HSG
Paved parking lots, roofs, driveways	2.100	В
Open space; grass cover < 50% (poor	12.000	C
Commercial & business	5.000	В

<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to lose all data entered or edited since this window was opened. The window is closed and the **WinTR-55 Main Window** redisplayed.

<u>A</u>ccept

Click **<u>A</u>ccept** to retain all data entered on the window, close the window, and to redisplay the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. The data are retained only in the computer memory and can be lost if the program is terminated prior to saving the data to a user file. To save data, use either the Save or SaveAs choices from the File menu, or click the diskette icon on the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Land Use Summary for Sub-area window

Purpose

The **Land Use Summary** window (window 11) is for display only and shows the detailed land uses and associated areas by hydrologic soil group for a sub-area. The displayed sub-area is the selected sub-area on the **Land Use Details** window. The window is activated or closed from the **Land Use Details** window. To move the **Land Use Summary** window around, right click on the window and drag.

Custom Curve Number window

Purpose

The average percent impervious areas shown for the Urban and Residential Districts are those used to develop the given composite curve numbers (CN). Other assumptions made for urban and residential districts are:

- Impervious areas are directly connected to the drainage system.
- Impervious areas have a CN=98.
- Pervious area CN is equivalent to pasture in good hydrologic condition.

Of these assumptions, the only constant is that impervious areas have a CN=98.

If the table CN values do not fit a particular project, the **Custom Curve Number** window can be used to make appropriate adjustments and compute a revised value.

The **Custom Curve Number** window (window 12) allows entry and editing of data to develop a composite urban curve number when the standard Cover Description assumptions on the **Land Use Details** window do not apply. The user can enter appropriate

numbers into the **Custom Curve Number** window to create a Composite CN to fit a specific land cover. The pervious land use assumption of pasture in good hydrologic condition may not apply, so the user may change the pervious CN. The percent of impervious area in a sub-area may also be changed.

Data entry and selection

To develop a custom curve number, scroll to the userdefined urban line of the Cover Description (in the **Land Use Details** window) and click on the Custom CN button located at the bottom of the Urban Area land use section and just above the Developing Urban land use section.

Land use for setting custom curve numbers is divided into pervious and impervious areas. Impervious area is further identified as connected or unconnected.

An impervious area is a connected impervious area if runoff flows directly into the drainage system or runoff flows as shallow concentrated flow over a pervious area and then into a drainage system. Shallow concentrated flow velocity is fast enough to allow little or no infiltration into the pervious area. An example of a connected impervious area is a residential rooftop where runoff flows from a roof downspout, across a paved driveway, into a street gutter, and finally into a storm sewer drainage system.

An impervious area is unconnected if runoff from it flows as sheet flow over a pervious area before entering the drainage system. Sheet flow is slow enough to presume that some infiltration will occur in the pervious area. If the water from a roof downspout flows across a lawn as sheet flow, with an opportunity for

Window 12 Custom Curve Number window



some of the water to infiltrate the lawn, the rooftop is unconnected impervious area. Unconnected impervious area is only available if impervious area is less than or equal to 30 percent of the total area.

Enter data for Pervious Curve Number, % Impervious Area, and % Impervious that is unconnected in the appropriate entry boxes. A composite curve number will be calculated using equations in appendix B and displayed in the Resulting Curve Number box. The Hydrologic Soil Group entry indicates which CN column (Hydrologic Soil Group A, B, C or D) of the user defined urban cover description line (**Land Use Details** window) the computed curve number will be placed in if the entered data are kept.

Buttons

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

$\underline{A}ccept$

Click <u>Accept</u> to close the **Custom Curve Number** window and redisplay the **Land Use Details** window with the newly defined composite curve numbers. Window 13 shows how the resultant text and custom curve number value of 67 are displayed in the **Land Use Details** window for an example with following conditions:

- 20 acres condos
- Hydrologic Soil Group B
- 20% of the area is impervious
- 50% of the impervious area is unconnected
- CN for the pervious area is 61

<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to close the **Custom Curve Number** window and redisplay the **Land Use Details** window, without incorporating the recently defined composite curve number data.

Land Use Details Sub-area Name								Ŀ		J
	lear		Lon	d Us	e De	tails				
				a 00.						
Land Use Categories										
🖲 Urban Area 🛛 🔿 Developing Urban	C Cultivate	d Agricult	ure	C Othe	r Agrici	ulture	O Ar	id Rangel	and	
				· · · · · · · · ·						-
Curre Description	Condition	A	CN	Acres) tol B	r Hyarok CN	ogic Soil 6 c		; D	CN	
Cover Description 1/2 acre	25	A	54	в	70	L I	80	U	85	-
1 acre	20	-	51		68		79		84	
2 acre	12		46		65		77		82	
Vestern Desert Urban Areas					100					-
Natural desert (pervious areas only)			63		77		85		88	
Artifical desert landscaping			96		96		96		96	
User defined urban (Click button to define)	Custom CN	_		20.00	67	_	74			
% Impervious Area:					20					
% Unconnected Impervious Area:					50					
Pervious Curve Number:					61		74			
EVELOPING URBAILAREA (No Vegetation) Newly graded area (pervious only)			77		86		91		94	
eooly gladed alea (perolods only)							51		34	
Project Area(ac) — Summary Screen —	– Sub-Area					-				
20.00 • Off C On	Area (ac)	20	We	ighted CN	: 67	<u>Η</u> ε	elp	<u>C</u> ancel	Acce	epl
1 20.00		1 20	_	-	10.					
										?
e: <new file=""></new>						3/7/2008		10:04		

Window 13 Land Use Details window with Custom Curve Number

Time of Concentration Details window

Purpose

The Time of Concentration Details window (window 14) allows entry, editing, and/or viewing of subarea flow path segment data and the resulting segment travel times and time of concentration for sub-areas in the watersheds that have detailed time of concentration data. The computed sub-area time of concentration is displayed in the Tc column of the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion on the WinTR-55 Main **Window**. The sub-area time of concentration can also be entered directly on the WinTR-55 Main Window. Data computed from the **Time of Concentration** Details window will override any prior time of concentration entries on the WinTR-55 Main Window. Blue boxes on the Time of Concentration Details window contain computed data, while white boxes contain user-entered data.

Data entry and selection

Time of concentration is computed by the method in TR–55 (USDA SCS 1986), chapter 3.

After opening the **Time of Concentration Details** window, select the sub-area in the Sub-area Name combo box. The current 2-year, 24-hour rainfall depth is displayed. To change the 2-year, 24-hour rainfall depth, go to the **Storm Data** window.

Up to five flow segments may be entered: one for sheet, two for shallow concentrated, and two for channel flow. For sheet and shallow concentrated flow, enter the length, slope, and surface type. For channel flow, either enter length, slope, Manning's *n*, flow area, and wetted perimeter, or enter length and velocity directly.

The equations used for computing each segment's travel time are in appendix B.

Sheet flow length

Sheet flow length in the DOS version of TR–55 was limited to 300 feet (90 m). Sheet flow for 300 feet is very unusual because the surface and the corresponding flow would need to be extremely uniform. Generally, beyond 100 feet the flow becomes concentrated flow. Therefore, sheet flow length is limited to 100 feet (30 m) in this version of WinTR–55. For additional

Window 14Time of Concentration Details window

To Time of Con	centratio	on Det	ails					[
Sub-area Name Sub-area Name Clear 2-Year Rainfall (in) Minor Lake Rename Clear 3.01 Time of Concentration Details									
Flow Type	Length (ft)	Slope (ft/ft)	Surface (Manning's n)		n	Area (ft²)	WP (ft)	Velocity (f/s)	Time (hr)
Sheet	20	0.0050	Grass-Range, Short (0.15)	•					0.081
Shallow Concentrated	100	0.0050	Paved	•					0.019
Shallow Concentrated				-					
Channel	2000							5.000	0.111
Channel									
Total	2,120							2.7909	0.211
Pile: C:\Documents and Settings\guan.guan\Application Data\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Ex 4-historical.w55 9/9/2008 1:45 PM									

information, see Sheet Flow references (References on time of concentration with respect to sheet flow length, Merkel 2001) at *http://www.wsi.nrcs.usda.gov/ products/W2Q/H&H/Tools_Models/WinTR55.html.*

Buttons

<u>R</u>ename

<u>R</u>ename allows the user to rename the sub-area.

C<u>l</u>ear

Clear clears all the currently displayed time of concentration details.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to lose all data entry or revisions since this window was opened and redisplay the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

$\underline{A}ccept$

Click <u>Accept</u> to retain all data entered or edited on the window, close the window, and redisplay the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. To save the data file, go to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**, and click the **diskette icon** or **Save** or **SaveAs** on the **File** menu.

Reach Data window

Purpose

The **Reach Data** window (window 15) allows editing and viewing of the stream network, shows whether each reach is a channel reach or a storage (structure) reach, and provides information on creating a channel rating if the reach is a channel reach. No data is required in this window if all sub-areas flow directly to the watershed Outlet. Again, WinTR–55 will only run if all the flow is directed to the outlet.

If the watershed exceeds 10 reaches or the channel or structural hydraulics require a complex rating relationship (for example, a principal spillway and an auxiliary spillway), another program should be used, such as WinTR-20 (Version 1.11) or SITES (Version 2005.02).

Reach-routing element concept

Reaches can be conceptualized as routing elements that exist in two types. The first type of routing element is a channel routing element, which is a stream reach. Data for a stream reach are entered on the **Reach Data** window.

The second type of routing element is a storage routing element, which is a reservoir or structure. If the routing element is a structure, the structure name is entered on the **Reach Data** window. The corresponding data for a structure, however, is entered on the **Structure Data** window.

Data entry and selection

Each reach must have a unique reach name and a receiving reach. Reach names are 1 to 10 characters in length and may be entered here or previously entered as Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet on the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Window 15 Reach Data window

Reach Data									
Reach Name	Receiving R	each	Reach Length (ft)	Manning n	Friction Slope (ft/ft)	Bottom Width (ft)	Average Side Slopes	Structure Name	
R3	R4	-	1625	0.065	0.0240	15.00	30 :1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
R4	R5	٠	5980	0.065	0.0060	20.00	29 :1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
R5	R6	•	2050	0.070	0.0170	20.00	21 :1	•	
R6	R7	•	3285	0.070	0.0070	10.00	20 :1	▼	
R7		-							
Cha	unnel Rating	g - Ri	ô			_		<u>C</u> ancel <u>A</u> ccept	
Stage 〔f〕	Flow (cfs)		Area P)	Top Widt [f]	h Velocity <u>(f/s)</u>	9	<u>Reach Flow Path</u>		
0.5 1.0	0.000 8.534 37.879 90.394	10 30	00 .00 .00 .00	10.00 30.00 50.00 90.00	0.000 0.853 1.263 1.904				
2.0 1	854.601).00	210.00	3.372				

A downstream receiving reach is required for each reach. A pulldown choice list provides previously entered reach names to chose from along with the watershed outlet. If a new name is entered into the receiving reach box, it will also be added to the reach name list as long as the current number of reaches is less than 10. If the current number of reaches is 10, then no new names are accepted in the receiving reach box.

When data are entered on the reach line for one type of routing, the box(es) for the other routing type will be grayed out. Data may still be entered in a gray box but will cause previously entered data on the line of the other routing type to be lost. Data for only one type of routing per line is retained.

To channel route, enter data for reach length, Manning's *n*, friction slope, bottom width, and side slope. The reach length will be either the stream channel length or the flood plain length for the reach. Which length is used depends on whether expected flows are within bank or out of bank. The other parameters define a representative cross section for the reach. Based on the channel cross section information entered, a channel rating relationship for the reach is computed and displayed below the grid. The equations used in development of the channel rating are in appendix B.

To storage route, enter a structure name, or select from the choice list (if the structure has been previously described). To edit or view structure data, double click the **Structure Name** to display the **Structure Data** window.

Selecting a representative cross section

A WinTR-55 reach cross section is either a rectangular, triangular, or trapezoidal channel. The rating is based on the channel bottom width, side slope, Manning's n, and friction slope data. The cross section rating includes Manning's equation discharges for fixed depths at the cross section (0.5, 1.0, 2.0, 5.0, 10.0, and 20.0 feet).

The Muskingum-Cunge flood routing method estimates how the hydrograph changes as it flows through the reach utilizing this rating information (Chow, Maidment, and Mays 1988; Maidment 1993; or Ponce 1989). Typically, reach storage reduces and delays the peak discharge. In addition, the hydrograph peak becomes more rounded.

During a WinTR–55 run, all selected storms use one cross section rating for a reach. For this reason, selecting a representative cross section for the reach is extremely important. Generally, the channel has a

capacity of a 5-year discharge or less (if the channel has a large capacity, the following information may not apply). If the peak discharge stays in the channel banks and the channel dimensions and roughness are entered, then the routing is reasonable. If the peak discharge flow overtops the channel banks, the reach routing is still based on the channel shape extending the side slopes up to 20 feet, which will not give a good representative stage-discharge relationship.

Using channel cross-sectional data to represent the flood plain cross section will generally raise the peak discharge at the downstream end of the reach and translate it downstream sooner than if the flood plain and its storage are considered. The impact varies with the flood plain width and its associated roughness.

The user must judge what is a reasonable approximation of the shape of the cross section above the channel banks. For example, the 2-year channel could be a 10-foot bottom width stream with 2:1 side slopes and 0.04 Manning's n. However, the 100-year flow area might be represented by a 100-foot bottom width flood plain with 10:1 side slopes and 0.07 Manning's n. However, WinTR–55 only accepts one set of data to represent the channel reach for all storms.

If the channel-only (no flood plain) approximation is unreasonable, one alternative is to enter a reach cross section representative of the flood plain (width, side slope, and Manning's n). This alternative neglects the effect of the channel on the total cross section rating.

A second alternative is to use a hydraulic model, such as U.S. Army Corps of Engineers HEC–RAS, to develop the total cross section rating to include both the channel and flood plain. Then use the NRCS WinTR–20 hydrologic model to develop and route the storm hydrographs.

Buttons

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

<u>P</u>lot

Click **Plot** to produce a graphical representation of the channel rating (window 16) and end area ratings from the data entered.

<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to lose all data entry or revisions since this window was opened and redisplay the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

<u>A</u>ccept

This button saves all data, closes the window, and returns to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. To save the data file, go to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**, and click on the **Save** icon, or select **File Save** or **SaveAs** from the menu. <u>Reach Flow Path</u> Click <u>Reach Flow Path</u> to display the Reach Flow Path window (window 17).





Reach Flow Path window

Purpose

The **Reach Flow Path** window (window 17) displays a reach schematic of the currently entered reach, sub-area, and structure information. If the user clicks on Outlet in the Reach Flow Path Diagram, the total drainage area of the project appears below the Blue -Reaches label in the window.

Buttons

<u>D</u>etail

This button toggles between displaying detailed information with labels as shown in window 17 or displaying labels only in the schematic.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

<u>C</u>lose

This button closes the **Reach Flow Path** window and returns to the previously displayed window.

Window 17 Reach Flow Path window



Structure Data window

Purpose

The **Structure Data** window (window 18) allows data entry and editing for the pond's surface area, structure outlet type and dimensions, and structure rating relationship for a structure. Three different outlet sizes (trials) may be defined for each structure. No data is required for this window if there are no structures in the watershed.

If the temporary ponding storage or structure hydraulics require a complex rating relationship, another routing method should be used, such as WinTR–20 (Version 1.11) or SITES (Version 2005.02). Alternate outlet sizes for multiple structures

Three outlet sizes may be entered for any structure. If the watershed has multiple structures and multiple outlet sizes, WinTR–55 will only compute up to three trials. Alternative one will combine the Trial #1 outlet sizes of each structure, alternative 2 will combine the Trial #2 outlet sizes of each structure, and alternative 3 the Trial #3 outlet sizes. Otherwise, the statistically possible number of alternatives with 10 structures and 3 outlet sizes is 3¹⁰ (greater than 59,000). Since WinTR–55 only computes three trials, computation time is much faster and there are only three alternatives to review and evaluate.



Structure Data (pipe outlet) window

Structure Data									
Structure Name	L L								
BasinA 💌 CLear	r <u>D</u> elete <u>R</u> ename	Structure I	Data						
Po	nd Surface Area		Accept						
	@ spillway crest	0.517 acres	Accept						
(antional)			<u>P</u> lot						
(optional) 0.77	feet above spillway	0.549 acres	Cancel						
Disc	harge Description								
_ Spillway Type Diameter(in) -		Height (ft) Pipe invert to spillway	Help						
Pipe Trial #1	Trial#2 Trial#3	3	· · · · · ·						
C Weir 36	42 48	8	?						
Orifice flow assumed									
Pipe Flo	w Rating - Basin/	A							
Diameter1 36(in)	Diameter2 42(in)		emporary						
Stage Pipe Head Flow	Pipe Head Flow	Pipe Head Flow (ft)cfs	Storage						
<u>(ft) (ft) cfs</u> 0.00 6.500 0.000	<u>(ft) cfs</u> 6.250 0.000	<u>(ft) cfs </u> 6.000 0.000	<u>(ac-ft)</u> 0.00						
1.50 8.000 95.966	7.750 128.564	7.500 165.189	0.82						
3.00 9.500 104.577	9.250 140.455	9.000 180.956	1.74						
6.00 12.500 119.958 15.00 21.500 157.323	12.250 161.635 21.250 212.886	12.000 208.950 21.000 276.414	3.85 12.43						
File: C:\Documents and Settings\helen.m	oody\Application Data\WinT	R-55\Sample File 6/26/2008	10:29 AM						

Data entry and selection

Enter the structure name (1 to 10 characters) or select from the choice list in the combo box. If data have been previously entered for the structure name, it will be displayed in the combo boxes in the window. If no data have been previously entered, all other entries will be blank. The first eight characters in structure names must be unique in each file. For example, Structure1 and Structure2 are invalid names because the first eight characters of the name are not unique. However, Struct1 and Struct2 are valid structure names.

Enter the pond surface area at the spillway crest elevation and, optionally, a height above the spillway crest and the pond surface area at that height. The pond area and height data are used to calculate temporary storage volumes for the ponded area. If surface area at the spillway crest elevation is entered without an optional second surface area, the pond is assumed to have vertical sides, and volume is based upon a constant surface area. If a second area at some elevation above the principal spillway crest elevation is given, it is assumed the pond cross section is trapezoidal and incremental storage volume is computed based upon a variable surface area.

Select the Spillway Type (Pipe or Weir). The default is pipe.

Pipe outlet

If pipe is selected, one to three pipe diameters may be specified along with the height from the outlet invert to the spillway inlet crest for each diameter. WinTR–55 will compute pipe head from the entered data. The minimum pipe diameter is 6 inches (152.4 mm). To satisfy the short-tube flow assumptions as described in the next section, the minimum height (outlet to spillway) should be at least twice the largest pipe diameter being evaluated. The discharge equations used in the structure rating are in appendix B. Once the first pipe diameter and height are entered, a pipe rating table is generated using the pipe discharge equations in appendix B and displayed below the Outlet Description on the **Structure Data** window. The table is updated as additional information is entered or is revised.

Short-tube flow assumptions

At any given stage, WinTR–55 assumes short-tube flow for the computed pipe head based on pipe diameter. This is a reasonable assumption for the riser and pipe configuration (fig. 5 bottom schematic). However, this assumption may be unreasonable for large, straight pipes (fig. 5 top schematic).

The short-tube approximation uses an assumption of orifice flow at the pipe outlet. Therefore, this assump-

tion is best based on full-pipe flow occurring. Full-pipe flow may or may not occur, but the condition is never checked in the program. A coefficient of 0.6 is reasonable for normal conditions. It is assumed that the pipe outlet is not submerged.

For example, if the structure outlet is a 36-inch (0.91 m) diameter pipe culvert and the maximum computed stage is 1.5 feet (0.46 m), then the pipe has never been more than half-full (fig. 6). In this case, the short-tube flow assumption has not been satisfied, and WinTR-55 should not be used for structural analysis. Other routing software, such as SITES (Version 2005.02), is necessary to analyze these cases.

Weir outlet

If weir is selected, one to three weir lengths may be specified. The entry of a zero weir length indicates a V-notch weir while all other lengths are for rectangular broad-crested weirs. Once the first weir length is entered, a weir rating table is generated using the weir discharge equation in appendix B, and displayed below the Outlet Description on the **Structure Data** window. Figure 7 shows the weir diagram.

The table on the **Structure Data** window is updated as additional information is entered or is revised. Window 19 shows weir outlet data entry.

Additional items to note about entry on the **Structure Data** window are:

- Toggling between the two different outlet types clears the outlet dimension values.
- Minimum data for a valid run is surface area at the spillway crest, outlet type, and one outlet size. If the outlet is a pipe, height must also be entered.

Buttons

Clear

Clears all data for existing structure.

<u>D</u>elete

Deletes current structure data and name.

<u>R</u>ename

Renames current structure.

$\underline{A}ccept$

Accepts current data, closes the window, and returns to **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

<u>P</u>lot

Click **Plot** to produce a graphical representation of the structure rating as shown in windows 20 and 21.







Window 19

Structure Data (weir outlet) window



<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to lose all data entry or revisions since this window was opened and redisplay the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.




Window 21 Structure Rating plot (weir outlet)

Storm Data window

Purpose

The **Storm Data** window (window 22) is used to specify rainfall data for the desired location. Storm data consists of at least one 24-hour rainfall amount, its return period, and associated rainfall distribution.

A rainfall database containing the 24-hour rainfall amounts by return period and associated rainfall distributions for many counties in the United States is included with WinTR–55.

Sometimes it is desirable to modify the database values with different amounts or rainfall distributions. Users are prevented from making changes to the database itself, but the data can be revised for individual WinTR–55 runs. Such modifications can be made on the **Storm Data** window. Revisions are saved only with the specific project data and not saved to the database.

Some states chose not to submit data for the database. It is the user's responsibility to ensure that WinTR-55 is using the proper rainfall data set for database values and provide appropriate 24-hour rainfall amounts, return periods, and distributions for values not included in the database.

Since local design requirements may supersede NRCS provided information, it is the user's responsibility to verify the appropriateness of all rainfall data inputs, including database values.

Data entry and selection

Watersheds inside United States—When the Storm Data window opens, the data displayed is for the previous WinTR-55 run. This may not be the correct data for the desired location of the current project. To update the data from displayed values to the desired location values from the WinTR-55 rainfall database, click on the <u>NRCS Storm Data</u> button. If no data are available for the current state and county information entered on the main window, this button is temporarily disabled, and the rainfall volumes, return periods, and distributions must be user specified.

Watersheds outside United States—No rainfall data are provided for areas outside the United States (window 23). For example, for a watershed in Durango, Mexico, the **WinTR-55 Main Window** combo box entry labels change from State and County to Region and Locale, as shown in window 24. Since the program retains previously used rainfall data until the user changes it, all watersheds outside of the United States require the user to work through the **Storm Data** window to enter the appropriate 24-hour rainfall volumes, return intervals, and distributions.

Window 22 Storm Data window

🖲 Storm Data		
Storm Data		
Champaign County, IL (NRCS) To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Champaign County, IL, click on the command button below.	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)
<u>N</u> RCS Storm Data Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type:	5 10 25 50	3.01 3.71 4.26 5.04 5.83
	100	6.61
P Lelp Cancel Accept File: C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Dal 8/27.	J	04 AM //

Window 23	Storm data for areas outside the United States

.

😇 Storm Data		
Storm Data		
User-provided custom storm data	a contrait	
NRCS does not provide storm data for regions / locales. Therefore, the command button below has been temporarily disabled.	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)
NRCS Storm Data		
Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions.		
Rainfall Distribution Type:		
Type II		
P Help Cancel Accept		
File: <new file=""> 9/17/2</new>	2008 1:2	ЗРМ 🥢

Window 24 Watersheds outside of the United States

🛎 WinTR-55	Main Window						×
	ojectData GlobalData		Help				
🖻 🖪 🎒 🧕	Тс 💊 🌾 👻	56	△ 🕺 🏛		?		
W	inTR-55 Sma	II W	/atersh	ed H		v	
Project Identification					.,	,,	-
User: KKV	F	Region:	Mexico			•	
Project: outside u	isa. l	.ocale:	Durango			•	
Subtitle: no nrcs-r	provide data			-	Execution Date	· 8/27/2008	
					Encodionipalo	. 0/2//2000	
Sub-areas are exp	ressed in: Dim	ensionle	ss Unit Hydrogra	aph: 😽	tandard>	-]
C Square Miles	Stor	m Data S	Source: Cham	paign Co	unty, IL (NRC	:5)	
	Rair	nfall Distr	ibution Identifie	: Туре	II		
Sub-area Entry and	Summary						
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description		area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (ac) Weighte CN	d Tc (hr)	
			Project Area	(ac)			
File: <new file=""></new>					8/27/2008	10:08 AM	-

The user must enter all the rainfall return period data and 24-hour rainfall amounts because the <u>NRCS</u> **Storm Data** button on the **Storm Data** window is disabled (window 23). The user must also select a rainfall distribution from the Rainfall Distribution Type combo entry box or develop a custom rainfall distribution.

Rainfall distribution—To change the associated rainfall distribution type displayed on this window, click on the pulldown menu to select any previously entered distribution. To enter a new rainfall distribution, click <u>Cancel</u> to return to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**, and select **Custom Rainfall Distributions** from the Global Data pulldown menu. When **File-New** is selected from the **WinTR-55 Main Window**, all the project data (Land Use, Tc, Structure, and Reach) are cleared. However, the global data (Storm Data, Rainfall Distribution, and Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph) are not changed. Furthermore, the global data are not changed even if the state and county are changed on the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Window 25 shows that the Project Identification Data are for Maui, Hawaii. However, the storm data source lists Franklin County, Missouri. Obviously, the Missouri data are not appropriate for Hawaii. The user must verify that the storm data for each project are accurate and appropriate.



Window 25 Differing state/county and storm data source example

Template files for storm data—Some users may use the same storm data set or sets repeatedly. If these data sets are not NRCS storm data sets, it would become tedious to re-enter the same rainfall data for each project. To create a template file, click **File-New** on the **WinTR-55 Main Window** to clear all the project data. Then enter the desired custom storm data. All the project data (Land Use, Tc, Structure, and Reach) have been cleared in the file. Save this file with a filename descriptive of the storm data.

To use this storm data for future projects, open this template file with the storm data first. Then proceed by entering project data (Land Use, Tc, Structure, and Reach). Make sure to save the project file with a different name so the template file is not overwritten.

Buttons

<u>NRCS Storm Data</u>

This button retrieves NRCS rainfall data if available. If the button is not available, the rainfall is not available in the database. Therefore, the user must supply all the rainfall data.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

<u>C</u>ancel

Click **Cancel** to lose all data entry or revisions since this window was opened and redisplay the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

$\underline{A}ccept$

Accept applies all new data, closes the window, and returns to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**. To save the data file, go to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**, and click **Save** or select **File Save** from the menu.

Custom Rainfall Distribution window

Purpose

The **Custom Rainfall Distribution** window (window 26) allows the user to input and revise nonstandard 24-hour rainfall distributions. The standard rainfall distributions in WinTR-55 may not be edited or deleted.

The first point of each distribution is 0.00000, and the last point should be 1.00000. No blank points are allowed. Each successive point must be equal to or larger than the previous one. Data are read left to right, starting at the top line and continuing to the bottom line. A maximum of 500 data points is allowed.

Data entry and selection

To enter a new distribution, type the name into the Local Distribution(s) entry box. To delete a distribution, select the distribution name from the pulldown menu, and then click **Delete**.

As rainfall distribution data are entered, WinTR-55 automatically displays the number of points entered and adjusts the time increment in hours for that number of points.

To view the Edit menu, right-click the mouse when the cursor is on a data point. The Edit menu allows the user to create and revise data points for the current rainfall distribution. **Insert Point** inserts a blank data point before the current point. **Delete Point** removes the current data point and moves successive points up. Click within a cell to edit the data in that cell.

Insert Point Delete Point

Buttons

<u>R</u>ename

Rename is used to rename the currently displayed rainfall distribution.

D<u>e</u>lete

This button deletes the current distribution.

<u>P</u>lot

Clicking on **Plot** produces a graphical representation of the current rainfall distribution (window 27). Only one distribution may be displayed at a time.

<u>D</u>one

Done on the **Custom Rainfall Distribution** window prompts WinTR-55 to save the distribution and return to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. Note that this process is different than saving project-specific data, such as Land Use Details, which only updates data in memory.

Window 26Custom Rainfall Distribution window

🔀 Custo	m Rain	fall Di	strib		
Cust	om Ra	infall	Distr	ibutio	n
Local Distrib	ution(s):				
Historical S	torm	•	- <u>R</u> ena	me D <u>e</u> l	lete
Historical St Time Incre 24-hr Rain	ment (hr):	1.	# Po	oints 25	
0.00000	0.03000	0.06000	0.09000	0.12000	
0.15000	0.19000	0.23000	0.27000	0.32000	
0.38000	0.45000	0.57000	0.70000	0.79000	
0.85000	0.89000	0.92000	0.95000	0.96000	
0.97000	0.98000	0.99000	0.99500	1.00000	
					-
Plot Done C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-					

Window 27 Custom Rainfall Distribution plot



Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph window

Purpose

The **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph** window (window 28) is used to input and revise nonstandard dimensionless unit hydrographs. The standard dimensionless unit hydrograph (peak rate factor = 484) in WinTR-55 may not be edited or deleted.

No blank points are allowed in the dimensionless unit hydrograph data table. Each point must increase from 0.00000 to 1.00000, then decrease to 0.00000. Data are read left to right, starting at the top line and continuing to the bottom. A maximum of 500 data points is allowed. For further information on dimensionless unit hydrographs, see NRCS NEH 630.16.

The user-defined dimensionless unit hydrographs can be entered and revised. To access this feature, right click in the Dimensionless Hydrograph Points area of the **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph** window. **Insert Point** inserts a blank data point before the current point. **Delete Point** removes the current data point and moves successive points up. Click within an individual cell to edit data in that cell.

Window 28 Dimensionless unit hydrograph window

Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph Local Hydrograph(s) delmarva Rename Delete
delmarva.
Points 50
Dimensionless Hydrograph Points
0.33100 0.29600 0.26500 0.23700 0.21200 🔺
0.19000 0.17000 0.15300 0.13800 0.12300 💻
0.10900 0.09700 0.08600 0.07600 0.06600
0.05700 0.04900 0.04100 0.03300 0.02700
0.02400 0.02100 0.01800 0.01500 0.01300
0.01200 0.01100 0.00900 0.00800 0.00800
0.00600 0.00600 0.00500 0.00500 0.00000 0.00000
Plot Done C:\Documents and Settings\guan.guan\Application Data\WinTR-

Data entry and selection

To enter a new dimensionless unit hydrograph, type the name into the Local Hydrograph(s) entry box.

As dimensionless unit hydrograph data are entered, WinTR–55 automatically displays the number of points entered. To delete a local dimensionless unit hydrograph, select the dimensionless unit hydrograph name from the pulldown list, and click the **Delete** button.

Buttons

<u>R</u>ename

Rename is used to rename the currently displayed dimensionless unit hydrograph.

D<u>e</u>lete

This button deletes the current dimensionless unit hydrograph.

<u>P</u>lot

Click **Plot** to produce a graphical representation of the dimensionless unit hydrograph (window 29).

<u>D</u>one

Clicking **Done** prompts WinTR–55 to save the dimensionless unit hydrograph and return to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**. Note that this process is different from saving watershed-specific data, such as Land Use Details, which only update data in memory.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

Graphics windows

Purpose and description

The **Graphics** windows for various functions (dimensionless unit hydrograph, rainfall distribution, reach rating, an output hydrograph) show graphically how two or more variables relate to one another. For example, the plot in window 30 shows how discharge or stream flow, end area, and top width vary with elevation for a channel reach section.

Window 29Dimensionless unit hydrograph plot



Window 30 Typical Graphics window plot



Buttons

SaveAs

Saves the current plot to a bitmap file.

Print

Prints the current plot to a selected printer.

肁 Copy to Clipboard

8

Copies the plot to the system clipboard for later insertion into other software, such as word processors.



Using the Zoom In feature allows the user to zoom into a selected area of a plot by selecting a portion of the plot that includes two or more data points. Zoom In neither plots data points, nor does it extrapolate outside the data set.



Θ Restores the view of the full plot.

▦

Line Attributes

*

Through Line Attributes, the user can change the plotted graphic by selecting various line widths, colors, and types.



Toggles between no grid lines, horizontal grid lines only, vertical grid lines only, and both horizontal and vertical grid lines.

Help - Context Sensitive



The help data window is displayed below the data grid at the bottom of the window.



Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.



Clicking on **Show Points** causes the individual points to be plotted on the hydrograph line.



Show Points

Closes the Graphics window and returns to the previous window.

Running WinTR-55

To run the WinTR–55 model, click Run on the menu bar, or click the Run WinTR–55 button. When the **Run WinTR–55** window opens, choose which storm frequencies to run by checking the appropriate boxes, and click the Run button. A WinTR–20 input data file is prepared, and the WinTR–20 model is run producing hydrographs for all of the sub-areas and reaches (upstream and downstream), as well as for the watershed outlet. If the run is successful, the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time table is displayed in the **File Display** window. If the run is unsuccessful, the Error file from WinTR–20 is displayed in the **File Display** window. Any data errors need to be corrected before another run is attempted.

Disclaimer

Although WinTR-55 has been tested by its developers, **NO** warranty, expressed or implied, is made as to the accuracy and functioning of the program and related program material nor shall the fact of distribution constitute any such warranty, and **NO** responsibility is assumed by the developers in connection therewith.

WinTR-55 processes

WinTR–55 preprocesses data during data entry for WinTR–20 hydrograph computations. The preprocessing computations are time of concentration, land use parameters, channel rating table, and structure rating table.

Time of concentration (Tc)

Sub-area Tc may be entered directly on the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window, or it may be computed from the detailed flow path data entered on the WinTR-55 Time of Concentration Details window. Data entry and computations are subdivided into three types of flow (sheet, shallow concentrated, and channel flow). While data for only one sheet flow segment can be entered, one or two segments of data can be entered for both the shallow concentrated and channel flows. The total computed travel times for each flow path segment are indicated on the entry window as is the Tc (sum of the travel times). The equations used to compute the various travel times for each segment type are in appendix B. Tc values in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window are coded in either green or blue text. Green text indicates a value computed on the WinTR-55 Time of Concentration Details window, while the blue text indicates a value that was entered directly.

Land use parameters

A sub-area drainage area and weighted runoff curve number may be entered directly on the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window or computed from land use data entered on the Land Use Details window. For each hydrologic soil group land cover complex, the area covered is entered on the Land Use Details window by individual subareas in the watershed. The land use areas entered are summed to determine the sub-area drainage area. They are also used to weigh the applicable runoff curve numbers for the land use hydrologic soil group combination to produce a sub-area weighted curve number. The equation used in the curve number weighting is in appendix B. Curve number values in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window are coded in either green or blue text. Green text indicates a value computed on the Land Use Details window, while blue text indicates a value that was entered directly.

The optional Custom CN button on the land use details table allows the user to compute a weighted curve number for a cover description that is not covered by the standard cover description assumptions on the **Land Use Details** window. Custom curve numbers are computed based upon a given pervious area curve number (from one of the standard table values), the percentage of the impervious area in the sub-area (CN=98), and the percentage of the impervious areas that are not directly connected to the flow path.

Channel rating table

A channel rating table is generated for each reach with channel information entered. The rating table consists of discharge, cross section end area, top width, and velocity for depths from 0 to 20 feet (0–6.1 meters). This range should cover all WinTR–55 applications. The rating table data are displayed below the entry portion of the **Reach Data** window when sufficient data are entered to perform the calculations. The equations used for each of the rating parameters are in appendix B.

Structure rating table

For each reach that has structure information entered, a structure rating table is generated. The information in the rating table depends on the structure outlet type (pipe or weir). The pipe outlet rating table consists of stage, pipe head, pipe flow, and temporary storage. The weir table consists of stage, weir flow, and temporary storage. One to three pipe diameters or weir lengths can be entered. A set of seven stages, based on multiples of the smallest pipe diameter, is computed for pipes, and similarly, a set of seven stages from 0 to 20 feet (0–6.1 meters), is computed for weirs. The rating table data are displayed below the entry portion of the **Structure Data** window when sufficient data are entered to perform the calculations. The equations used for each of the rating parameters are in appendix B.

WinTR-20 processes

WinTR-55 relies on the WinTR-20 model for all hydrograph processes. These include hydrograph generation, combining hydrographs, channel routing, and structure routing. A brief description of each of these processes follows.

Hydrograph generation

Hydrographs are generated from sub-areas using the appropriate rainfall depth (for a specific frequency), rainfall distribution, sub-area drainage area, time of concentration (Tc), and curve number using the NRCS hydrograph generation technique. The sub-area Tc is used to establish the time interval for the spacing of points in the dimensionless unit hydrograph. This time interval defines the generated hydrograph time increment. The rainfall distribution is linearly interpolated to develop mass rainfall values to use at the time increment needed.

Combining hydrographs

Two hydrographs are combined using the first hydrograph time increment and linearly interpolating the second hydrograph. Next, the two hydrographs are combined again using the time increment from the second and linearly interpolating the first. The combined hydrograph with the highest peak is the one retained along with the appropriate time increment.

Channel routing

The program uses a Muskingum-Cunge method of channel routing (Chow, Maidment, and Mays 1988; Maidment 1993; or Ponce 1989). The rating table generated by WinTR-55 for each reach is used to represent flow in that reach. The unique feature of the Muskingum-Cunge routing is the calculation of the length of a routing reach step based on inflow peak discharge and cross section information. If the routing reach step length is shorter than the reach length, the reach is sub-stepped. For example, if there are two steps, the routing is accomplished by solving the routing equation twice: the outflow hydrograph for the upper half of the reach becomes the inflow hydrograph for the lower half of the reach. If there are less than 10 points from the beginning of the hydrograph to the peak of the inflow hydrograph, the inflow hydrograph is interpolated at a time interval to allow 10 points, the routing computed, and the outflow hydrograph interpolated to return it to the original time increment.

Structure routing

The storage-indication method (NEH630.17) is used to route structure hydrographs. While the routed hydrograph time increment (downstream end of reach) is the same as the increment at the upstream end, the actual routing may sub-step the increment during the routing. The routing time step is based on the smallest time to empty the reservoir at each of the structure rating points. The time to empty the reservoir is computed as the structure rating storage volume divided by the average outflow (rating outflow/2). The hydrograph time increment is compared to a percentage (currently 50%) of the smallest emptying time to determine the number of time steps to use between hydrograph points.

Viewing Output

File Display window

The **File Display** window (window 31), also referred to as the Report Viewer, displays various WinTR–55 reports. This window opens after a WinTR–55 run. If there are any errors in the WinTR–55 run, this window opens with the Error File displayed. Carefully examine the error messages, and/or modify the input data to correct the errors.

If no errors are discovered in the data set, the WinTR–55 run is executed, and the **File Display** window opens with the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. Additional reports may be selected from the WinTR–20 reports and/or the WinTR–55 reports listed in the **File Display** menu or from the **Output Definition** window (window 32).

Scroll through the reports using the viewer, or select individual reports on the **File Display** window menu. A brief description of the **File Display** window menu items are in table 3.

Window 31 File Display window

	nTR-20 Reports WinTR-55 Reports Help	
	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	<u>C</u> lose
KKV	Minor Lake Detention Check Analyze detention basin with historical storm Champaign County, Illinois	^
	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	
Sub-Area or Reach Identifie	110-Yr	
SUBAREAS Minor Lake		
	13.04	
REACHES	13.04	
REACHES basin	13.04 18.09 13.04	
	18.09	

Window 32 Output Definition window

Output Definition	
Output Definition	
Available Reports:	
Current data description	
🔽 Storm Data	
🔲 Watershed Peak Table	
☐ Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	
🗖 Structure Output Table	
🔽 Sub-Area Summary Table	
🔽 Reach Summary Table	
▼ Sub-Area Time of Concentration Details	
▼ Sub-Area Land Use and Curve Number Details	
✓ Reach Channel Rating Details	
E Structure Description	
Structure Rating Details	
Print To: © Printer/File © Report Viewer <u>H</u> elp <u>R</u> eset	<u>P</u> rint <u>C</u> lose

Table 3WinTR-55 file display

Menu

Menu Item	Pulldown Choice	Explanation
Print	Print	Prints the displayed report(s).
	Page setup	Define target printer, page size, and orientation.
Edit	Copy to clipboard	Copies the displayed report(s) to the Windows [®] system clipboard.
	Find	Find a specific text or number. Helpful for navigating large output reports.
	Find next	Repeats a previously defined search.
WinTR–20 reports	Input file	View the WinTR–20 input file created from WinTR–55 input data.
	Printed page file	View the WinTR–20 output file.
	Error file	View WinTR–20 error file. The error messages are found in the WinTR–20 user's guide.
	Debug file	View WinTR–20 debug file. This contains any messages or warnings generated by the run.
WinTR-55 reports		See table 4 for available reports.
Help	None	Displays File Display window help text.

Buttons

$\underline{C}lose$

Click **Close** to close the **File Display** window. If you were using the report viewer, you will be returned to the **Output Definition** window. Otherwise you will be returned to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Output Definition window

Once rainfall data are entered, the Output Definition button on the **WinTR–55 Main Window** is enabled. Prior to executing a WinTR–55 run, it is possible to select reports for viewing. However, some report options may be grayed out, indicating that reports are not available for viewing until an error-free WinTR–55 run is executed.

Click the Output Definition icon to open the **Output Definition** window (window 32). Specify output by clicking the box to the left of the desired report. Output may be sent to a file or to the report viewer, depending on which option is selected.

Available reports

Available reports shown in the **Output Definition** window are summarized in table 4.

Buttons

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

<u>A</u>ll/Reset

If no report boxes are checked, the button label is All. Click <u>All</u> to check all the reports that are available. If all the report boxes are checked, the label toggles to Reset, which will clear all the check boxes.

<u>V</u>iew/Print

This button label toggles between View and Print, depending on which option button is selected, either Printer/File or Report Viewer.

$\underline{C}lose$

Click <u>C</u>lose to close the **Output Definition** window and return to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

Table 4WinTR-55 reports

Report Name	Description
Current data description	Lists the current user input data
Storm Data	Lists the rainfall depth by rainfall return period information. Also shows Storm Data source, Rainfall Distribution, and the Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph
Watershed Peak Table	Not available until an error-free WinTR–55 run is executed. Upon completion of an error-free WinTR–55 run, this option will give a listing of peak dis- charges, by reach, for each storm evaluated
Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	Not available until an error-free WinTR–55 run is executed. Upon completion of an error-free WinTR–55 run, this option gives a listing of peak discharge and time by sub-area or reach identifier, for each storm evaluated
Structure Output Table	Not available until an error-free WinTR–55 run is executed. Upon completion of an error-free WinTR–55 run, this option gives a listing of peak flow (PF), storage volume (SV), and maximum stage (STG) for structures included in the WinTR–55 run. If there are no structures in the run, this table option is grayed out
Sub-Area Summary Table	A listing by sub-area of drainage area, time of concentration, runoff curve number, receiving reach, and sub-area description
Reach Summary Table	Identifies, by reach, the receiving reach, reach length, and routing method used
Sub-Area Time of Concentration Details	A listing, by sub-area, of flow length, slope, Manning's n value, end area, wetted perimeter, velocity and travel time for time of concentration flow path segments along with the total time of concentration
Sub-Area Land Use and Curve Number Details	A listing, by sub-area, of land use, hydrologic soil group, and area for each particular land use in a sub-area. Also lists the total area and weighted curve number for each sub-area
Reach Channel Rating Details	Identifies, by reach, the reach length, Manning's n value used for that reach, friction slope, bottom width, and side slope. Also includes the computed channel rating for each reach. Channel ratings are in the WinTR–55 input data format: Stage – Flow – End Area. Rating tables also include top width and friction slope
Structure Description	Provides a summary of the entered structure data by reach. If there are no structures in the run, this table option is grayed out
Structure Rating Tables	Provides a summary of the computed structure ratings: stage, storage, and flow. If there are no structures in the run, this table option is grayed out

Plotting and viewing hydrographs

Output Graphics window

Click the Hydrographs icon to open the **Output Graphics** window (window 33), and specify hydrographs to plot or view. Select either sub-areas or reaches, and then check the box next to the name of the sub-area or reach for the desired hydrographs. For reach hydrographs, the hydrograph may be viewed at the upstream or downstream or both ends of the reach. Select storm event hydrographs by checking the appropriate box. It is possible to plot all the hydrographs for all the subareas or reaches for all of the available storm events on one plot. However, be aware that selecting several hydrographs to view at once makes the hydrographs that much more difficult to read.

Window 33	Output Graphics window
-----------	------------------------



Buttons

<u>Plot</u>

Once the desired hydrographs have been specified, click <u>P</u>lot and a **Graphics** window opens showing the desired plot (window 34).

<u>C</u>lose

Click <u>C</u>lose to close this window and redisplay the main window.

<u>H</u>elp

Opens a new help-text window with an overview of window purpose and general data entry instructions. Close the help-text window to return to data entry.

Quick Help (?)

Click ? to provide context-sensitive help for any data that is clicked on next. To replace the help question mark cursor with the standard cursor, click ? again. Help is displayed at the bottom of the window.

Output Graphics window

Click Plot on the **Output Graphics** window to plot selected hydrographs. Use the zoom button to enlarge portions of the plot as shown in window 35. Either save the plot to a file or print directly to a printer.

Click the \underline{C} lose button to close this window.





WinTR-55 User Guide, January 2009



Window 35 Output plot zoom feature

Appendices

Appendix A	Examples	
	Example 1	Determining Runoff From a Single Sub-area for the Existing
		and Developed Conditions and Sizing a Detention Basin
	Example 2	Evaluating Larger Watersheds and User-defined Storm Data
	Example 3	Custom Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph
	Example 4	Custom Rainfall Distribution
Appendix B	Equations	
Appendix C	References	

I

Examples

Example 1 Determining Runoff From a Single Sub-area for the Existing and Developed Conditions and Sizing a Detention Basin

Background

An industrial development is planned on a 12.5-acre site in Franklin County, Missouri. The land is presently being used for corn production and is planted in straight rows. There are no special conservation practices being used, and the vegetative cover is typically in good condition. The soils on this property are hydrologic soil group B.

There is no defined channel running through the property, but there is evidence of sheet flows and shallow concentrated flows. The sheet flow path has been determined to be 25 feet long at a slope of 0.8 percent. The shallow concentrated flow path has been determined to be 825 feet long at a slope of 0.8 percent.

It is desirable to limit peak discharge from a 25-year storm for the developed condition so that it does not exceed the peak discharge from a 50-year storm for the undeveloped condition. Therefore, it is necessary to design some type of stormwater detention structure to control the runoff.

Solution

The design of the stormwater detention structure will be handled in three parts. Part A will be to determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the existing condition. Part B will be to determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the developed condition. Part C will focus on sizing the stormwater detention structure and analyzing its effects.

Part A Determine existing condition peak discharge and runoff volume

Step 1: Start the WinTR–55 program and enter User ID, Project name, Subtitle, State, and County. Specify Subarea units (default is acres). Use the Storm Data Source default values based on the state and county specified. To make certain the correct Storm Data Source and Rainfall Distribution Identifier are selected, the user MUST complete step 2.

📟 WinTR-55 Main	n Window					
File Options Project	tData GlobalData Rur	n Help				
🖻 🖬 🚳 🗶 '	Тс 🟊 🌾 👻 🛚	0 5F 4	∆ 🗶 📖		8	
	inTR-55 Sm					
Project Identification		iun n	ureran	cuit	yarolog	7
User: User ID		State:	Missouri			•
Project: Example	1	County:	Franklin			-
Subtitle: Existing	Condition		,	— Е	xecution Date: (3/28/2006
1						5/20/2000
- Sub-areas are expr	ressed in: D	imensionle	ss Unit Hydrogra	aph: <mark>kste</mark>	andard>	-
C Square Miles	S				y, MO (NRCS)	
		lainfall Distr	ibution Identifie	: Туре I	Ι	
Sub-area Entry and S	Summary	1	_		I	
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Descriptior	n	area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (a	c) Weighted CN	Tc (hr)
			Project Area:	(ac)		
File: <new file=""></new>					3/28/2006	11:01 AM

Step 2: From the WinTR-55 Main Window menu, select GlobalData. From that drop-down menu, select Storm Data. On the Storm Data window, click the <u>NRCS Storm Data</u> button if the user decides to use the default database values for the county-state combination being modeled. Clicking the <u>Accept</u> button accepts the data and returns the user to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

😇 Storm Data								
Storm Data								
Franklin County, MO (NRCS) To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Franklin County, MO, click on the command button below.	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)						
NRCS Storm Data Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: Type II Type II	2 5 10 25 50 100 1	3.5 4.5 5.1 5.8 6.5 7.2 3						
P Lelp Accept File: <new file=""> 3/28/2006 11:02 AM</new>								

Step 3: Enter Sub-area Name, Sub-area Description, and where the water leaving this sub-area flows in the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet box.

📟 WinTR-55 Main	n Window				
File Options Projec	tData GlobalData Run	Help			
F 8 5 6	Tc 🔺 🌾 👻	56 🕺 🗊	K ?		
W	inTR-55 Sma	II Watersh	ed Hyd	drology	/
Project Identification	Data				
User: User ID	9	itate: Missouri			•
Project: Example	1 0	County: Franklin			•
Subtitle: Existing	Condition		Exec	ution Date: 3	/28/2006
- Sub-areas are exp • Acres	ressed in: Dime	ensionless Unit Hydrogra	aph: kstande	ard>	•
 Acres Square Miles 	Stor	m Data Source: Frank	lin County, N	O (NRCS)	
	Rain	fall Distribution Identifier	: Type II		
Sub-area Entry and	Summary				
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description	Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)
Tract 1	Existing Land Use	Outlet 💌	0.00		
		Project Area:	(ac)		
File: <new file=""></new>			3	/28/2006	11:03 AM 🥢

Step 4: Click Land Use Details button to open the Land Use Details window. In this window, enter the area of the sub-area in the appropriate location. Click the <u>Accept</u> button to accept the data and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Tract 1	a Name						100			
Incorr	<u> </u>	Clear		Lan	d Use	Det	ails			
	an Area 🔹 🕜 Developing Urban	Galeria			C Other	ر مین میراد		rid Rang	-1	
, Orb	an Area 🔹 Oeveloping Orban	Cultivate	ea Agricui	rure	o Officer	Agricul		mu kong	sionu	_
					Acres) for I		ic Soil Group	20		_
	Cover Description	Condition	A	CN	в	CN	C CN	D	CN	Ľ
CULTIVAT	TED AGRICULTURAL LANDS									
Fallow	Bare soil			77		86	91		94	
Fallow	Crop residue (CR)	poor		76		85	90		93	
Fallow	Crop residue (CR)	good		74		83	88		90	
Row crop	Straight row (SR)	poor	_	72		81	88		91	F
	Straight row (SR)	good		67	12.500	78	85		89	Ŀ
	SR + Crop residue	poor		71		80	87		90	
	SR + Crop residue	good		64		75	82		85	
	Contoured (C)	poor		70		79	84		88	
	Contoured (C)	good		65		75	82		86	
	C + Crop residue	poor		69		78	83		87	
	C + Crop residue	good		64		74	81		85	
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	poor		66		74	80		82	
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	good		62		71	78		81	
	C&T + Crop residue	poor		65		73	79		81	

The sub-area area and runoff curve number now appear in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR–55 Main Window.

🚟 WinTR-55 Mai	n Window					
File Options Proje	ctData GlobalData Run	Help				
28.	Tc 🔺 🌾 🐷	56	* 🔳	K ?]	
W	inTR-55 Sma	ll Wate	ershe	ed Hyd	drology	1
Project Identification				•		
User: User ID	S	itate: Miss	ouri			•
Project: Example	1 0	ounty: Fran	klin			•
Subtitle: Existing	Condition			Exec	cution Date: 3	/28/2006
Sub-areas are exp Acres Square Miles Sub-area Entry and	Stori Rain	ensionless Unit m Data Source fall Distribution	Frankl	in County, N		•
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description	Sub-area Fl Reach/O		Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)
Tract 1	Existing Land Use	Outlet	-	12.50	78	
		Proj	ect Area:	12.50 (ac)		
File: <new file=""></new>				3	/28/2006	11:05 AM

Step 5: Click **Time of Concentration Details** button to open the **Time of Concentration Details** window. In this window, enter the appropriate information to compute the sub-area time of concentration. Click the <u>Accept</u> button to accept the data and return to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**.

Tc Time of Concentration Details Sub-area Name Tract 1 Rename Clear 3.5 Time of Concentration Deta								etails
Flow Type	Length (ft)	Slope (ft/ft)	Surface (Manning's n)	n	Area (ft ²)	WP (ft)	Velocity (f/s)	Time (hr)
Sheet	25	0.0080	Cultivated <= 20% residue (0.06) 💌					0.036
Shallow Concentrated	825	0.0080	Unpaved 👻					0.159
Shallow Concentrated			-	1				
Channel								
Channel								
Total	850						1.2108	0.195
File: <new file=""></new>	•				?	Help	<u>C</u> ancel	Accept

The sub-area time of concentration now appears in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window.

🕮 WinTR-55 Main Window						X			
File Options ProjectData GlobalDa	ata Run Help)							
🛎 🖬 🚭 👤 To 🔺 🌾	≥∎⊜ €™ ¥ ¥%A <u>*</u> ≣⊾ ?								
WinTR-55	Small	Watersh	ed Hv	drology	,				
Project Identification Data						1			
User: User ID	State	Missouri			•				
Project: Example 1	Coun	ty: Franklin			•				
Subtitle: Existing Condition			Exe	cution Date: 3	/28/2006				
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> • Acres Storm Data Source: Franklin County, MO (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II</standard>									
□ Sub-area Entry and Summary			Type II			-			
Sub-area Name Sub-area De:	scription S	ub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)				
Tract 1 Existing Land	Use Ou	tlet 💌	12.50	78	0.195				
		Project Area	: 12.50 (ac))					
File: <new file=""></new>				3/28/2006	11:06 AM	- //			

Step 6: Click the **Run** button to open the **Run WinTR–55** window. Select the 50–year storm event for this example. Once the storm events have been selected, click the **<u>Run</u>** button to execute the run.

🛠 Run WinTR-55	
Run Win1	FR-55
Check storm(s) to evaluate: -	
🗖 2-Yr	🗖 25-Yr
🦵 5-Уг	▼ 50-Yr
🔲 10-Уг	∏ 100-Yr
🗔 1-Уг	
<u>H</u> elp <u>C</u> ance	I <u>R</u> un

Step 7: When the run is complete, the File Display window opens showing the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. To review other output, click Win TR-20 Reports or WinTR-55 Reports, and select the reports to view. When complete, click the Close button to close the File Display window and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

🖤 F	ile Display			
Print	Edit WinT	R-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Reports Help	
			Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	
Vε	ser ID		Example 1 Existing Condition Franklin County, Missouri	
			Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	
6	Sub-Area or Reach dentifier	Peak 50-Yr (cfs) (hr)	Flow and Peak Time (hr) by Rainfall Return Period	
	UBAREAS ract 1	66.81 12.01		
RI	EACHES			
01	UTLET	66.81		
C:\Do	ocuments and	Settings\quar	. quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\tr55rpts.out 3/28/2006	11:07 AM

Step 8: To save the data, click File and SaveAs. In the Save a WinTR-55 data file as ... popup window, specify a location and file name, and click Save. The data are now saved, the popup window closes, and WinTR-55 Main Window is redisplayed.

Save a WinTR-S	i5 data file as				? 🛛
Save in:	🗁 Sample Files		-	🗢 🗈 💣 🎫	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer					
My Network Places	File name: Save as type:	Example-1A WinTR-55 Data Files(*.w55)		•	Save Cancel

Part A Results

50-year Pre-Development Discharge = $66.8 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$

50-year Pre-Development Runoff Volume = 4.023 in (watershed-inches) = 4.19 acre-ft

 $\left(\frac{4.023}{12} \text{ ft}\right)$ (12.50 ac) = 4.19 ac-ft

The runoff volume can be accessed on the File Display window by selecting the WinTR-20 Printed Page File.

it Edit WinT	R-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Repo	rts Help					
		Win1	FR-20	Printed F	² age F	ile		<u>C</u> lose
			Example					1
		Е	xisting Com	ndition				_
		Name o	f printed p	page file:				
			TR20.ou					
				STORM 50-Yr				
				STORM SO II				
Area or	Drainage	Rain Gage	Runoff		Peak I	low		
Reach	Area	ID or	Amount	Elevation	Time	Rate	Rate	
Identifier	(sq mi)	Location	(in)	(ft)	(hr)	(cfs)	(csm)	
fract 1	0.020		4.023		12.01	66.81	3421.06	
Line								
Start Time		Flow V	alues @ tip	me increment	of 0.0:	L2 hr		
(hr)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	
6.887	0.05	0.05	0.05	0.06	0.06	0.06	0.06	
6.973	0.06	0.06	0.07	0.07	0.07	0.07	0.07	
7.059	0.07	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.09	
7.145	0.09	0.09	0.09	0.09	0.09	0.10	0.10	
7.231	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.11	0.11	0.11	0.11	
7.318	0.11	0.12	0.12	0.12	0.12	0.12	0.12	
7.404	0.13	0.13	0.13	0.13	0.13	0.14	0.14	
7 490	0 14	0 14	0 14	0 15	0 15	0 15	0 15	

Part B Determine developed condition peak discharge and runoff volume

Rather than beginning with a new file to determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the developed condition, it is possible to edit the existing condition file previously created.

Step 1: Start the WinTR–55 Program, and open the **Existing Conditions** file by selecting **Open** from the File menu and locating the file using the **Open a WinTR–55 data file** window.

Open a WinTR-	55 data file				? 🗙
Look in:	🚞 Sample Files		•	🗢 🗈 💣	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents	Example-1A.w5	5			
My Computer					
My Network Places	File name:	Example-1A.w55		•	Open
	Files of type:	WinTR-55 Data Files (*.w55)		•	Cancel

Step 2: Edit the User I.D., Project Name, and Subtitle, as appropriate. Edit Sub-area Name, Sub-area Description, and where the water leaving this sub-area flows in the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet box, as appropriate. Since this example uses the same county-state combination established previously, there is no need to work through the Global Data selection process to change the Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph, Storm Data Source, and Rainfall Distribution Identifier information.

LNERS	WinTR	-55 Mair	n Window								X	
File	Optior	ns Projec	tData GlobalData F	Run He	lp							
Ê		3 🧶	Тс 📐 🌾 👻	10 B	F L	∆ 🗶 🗊	t I	2 ?				
										,		
⊢ F	Project Identification Data											
ι	lser:	User ID	State: Missouri						•			
F	Project:	Example	1	Cou	nty:	Franklin				•		
9	Subtitle: Future or Developed Condition Execution Date: 3/28/2006								/28/2006			
	ub area					there are the						
	Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> • Acres • Acres • Acres</standard>											
	C Square Miles Storm Data Source: Franklin County, MO (NRCS)											
Sub-area Entry and Summary												
Γ	Sub-area Name Sub-area Descriptio				Sub-area Flows to				Weighted	T. 4.2		
						ach/Outlet		rea (ac)	CN	Tc (hr)		
	Fract 1		Developed Land Use	0	utlet	•		12.50	78	0.195		
	Project Area: 12.50 (ac)											
File	: C:\Win	TR-55\Sar	nple Files\Example-1A.	w55				3	/28/2006	11:12 AM	- /	

Step 3: Click Land Use Details button to open the Land Use Details window. In the Land Use Details window, edit the land use, as appropriate, and click <u>Accept</u> to accept the changes and return to WinTR-55 Main Window.

Itivated A <u>c</u> ion	gricultur A	re	d Use O Other Acres) for B	Agricu Hydrok CN 98 89 85 82 92		3 2 3 7	CN 98 93 91 89 95	
ion	gricultur A	re Area (/ 08 83 76 72 89	C Other Acres) for B	Agricu Hydrok CN 98 89 85 82 92	ulture C ogic Soil Gro C Cr 92 85 85 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82	- ups 3 2 3 7	CN 98 93 91 89 95	
ion	- A	98 98 83 76 72 89	Acres) for B	Hydrok CN 98 89 85 82 92	ogic Soil Gro c Ct 94 95 85 85 87 94	- ups 3 2 3 7	CN 98 93 91 89 95	
ion	- A	98 98 83 76 72 89	Acres) for B	Hydrok CN 98 89 85 82 92	ogic Soil Gro c Ct 94 95 85 85 87 94	- ups 3 2 3 7	CN 98 93 91 89 95	
iperv		200 98 83 76 72 89	B	CN 98 89 85 82 92	C C1 91 92 82 82 82 82 94	3 2 3 7	98 93 91 89 95	
iperv	A	98 83 76 72 89		98 89 85 82 92	94 95 85 87 94	3 2 2 7	98 93 91 89 95	
		83 76 72 89	12.500	89 85 82 92	92 83 87 94	2 	93 91 89 95	
		83 76 72 89	12.500	89 85 82 92	92 83 87 94	2 	93 91 89 95	
		76 72 89	12.500	85 82 92	8: 8: 94	1	91 89 95	
		72 89	12.500	82 92	87	1	89 95	
		89	12.500	92	94	1	95	
			12.500					
			12.500	_				
		81	12.500	88				
					91		93	
perv								
pero	_	77		85	90	1	92	
	_	61		75	8		87	
		57		72	81	-	86	
	_	54		70	80		85	
		51		68	75		84	
								-
.rea a (ac) 📘 1	12.50	Wei	ighted CN:	88	<u>H</u> elp	<u>C</u> ancel	Acce	ept
,								<u>_</u>
								?
								_
The sub-area and runoff curve number now appear in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window.

🚟 WinTR-55 Main Window						×
File Options ProjectData GlobalData	Run Help					
288 9 to 18 y y	<u>نې</u> کې	△ 🕺 🗂	K ?]		
WinTR-55 S	mall V	Vatersh	ed Hy	drology	/	
Project Identification Data			-			
User: User ID	State:	Missouri			•	
Project: Example 1	County:	Franklin			•	
Subtitle: Future or Developed Condition	n		Exec	cution Date: 3	/28/2006	
Sub-areas are expressed in: Acres Square Miles	Storm Data	ess Unit Hydrogra Source: Frank	lin County, A		•	
Sub-area Entry and Summary	nainraii Dis	tribution Identifier	: Type II			
Sub-area Name Sub-area Descript	tion I	area Flows to :ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
Tract 1 Developed Land Use	Outle	t <u> </u>	12.50	88	0.195	
				1		
		Project Area:	12.50 (ac)			
File: C:\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Example-1A	.w55		3	3/28/2006	11:14 AM	1.

Step 4: Click Time of Concentration Details button to open the Time of Concentration Details window. In the Time of Concentration Details window, edit the appropriate information to compute the developed condition sub-area time of concentration. The path of the flow for the Time of Concentration Details will be the same and have the same slope, but the surface itself will be paved and smooth. Click <u>Accept</u> to accept the changes and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Sub-area Name Sub-area Name Rename Clear 2-Year Rainfall (in) Time of Concentration Det Tract 1 Bename Clear State State State Time of Concentration Det State State											
Flow Type	Length (ft)	Slope (ft/ft)	Surface (Manning's n)		n	Area (ft²)	WP (ft)	Velocity (f/s)	Time (hr)		
Sheet	25	0.0080	Smooth Surface (0.011)	-					0.009		
Shallow Concentrated	825	0.0080	Paved	-					0.126		
Shallow Concentrated				-							
Channel	-										
Channel											
Total	850							1.7490	0.135		

The sub-area time of concentration now appears in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window.

🕮 WinTR-55 Main Window						×
File Options ProjectData GlobalData	Run Help					
🖻 🖪 🕘 To 🔺 🌾 🌱	SF 1	△ 🗶 💼	K ?			
WinTR-55 S	mall M	/atersh	ed Hy	- drology	,	
Project Identification Data	india n	rurer sn	eu ny	ai olog y		1
User: User ID	State:	Missouri			•	
Project: Example 1	County:	Franklin			-	
Subtitle: Future or Developed Conditio	-	1	— Ever	cution Date: 3	128/2004	
Subuic. I diate of Developed Condition			LAC		/ 20/ 2006	
Sub-areas are expressed in:	Dimensionle	ss Unit Hydrogra	aph: kstand	ard>	•	
C Square Miles	Storm Data	Source: Frank	lin County, A	AO (NRCS)		
	Rainfall Dist	ribution Identifier	Type II			
Sub-area Entry and Summary						
Sub-area Name Sub-area Descrip	tion I	area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
Tract 1 Developed Land Use	e Outlet	-	12.50	88	0.135	
		Project Area:	12.50 (ac)			
File: C:\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Example-1A	.w55		3	/28/2006	11:15 AM	- //.

Step 5: Click on the Run icon to open the **Run WinTR–55** window. Select the 25–year storm event for this example. Once the storm event has been selected, click the **<u>Run</u>** button to execute the run.

🗡 Run WinTR-55	
Run Wi	nTR-55
Check storm(s) to evalua	ate:
🗖 2-Yr	🔽 25-Yr
5-Yr	50-Yr
∏ 10-Уг	🖵 100-Yr
Г 1-У	
<u>H</u> elp <u>C</u> a	ncel <u>R</u> un

Step 6: When the run is complete, the File Display window opens showing the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. To review other output, click WinTR-20 Reports or WinTR-55 Reports, and select the reports to view. Click the <u>Close</u> button to close the File Display window and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Q	File Dis	play				
Prin	t Edit	WinTR-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Reports Help			
_			Hydrograph Pe	ak/Peak Time T	Table	<u>C</u> lose
1	Jser ID		Example Future or Develop Franklin County	ed Condition		
			Hydrograph Peak/Pea	k Time Table		
1	Sub-Ar or Rea [dentif	ch 25-Yr	Flow and Peak Time (h	r) by Rainfall Return 1	Period	
	SVBAREA Fract 1					
1	REACHES					
	1	77.54				
C:\E)ocument	s and Settings\quar	quan\Application Data\WinTR	-55\tr55rpts.out	3/28/2006	11:19 AM

Step 7: To save the data, click File and SaveAs. In the Save a WinTR55 data file as ... popup window, specify a location and a NEW FILE NAME, and click Save. The data is now saved, the popup window closes, and the WinTR-55 Main Window is redisplayed.

Save a Win	TR-55 dat	a file as			? 🗙
Save in:	🗀 Sample Files		•	+ 🗈 💣 🖩	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents	Example1-A.	w55			
(1)	File name:	Example1-B		-	Save
My Network Places	File name: Save as type:	WinTR-55 Data Files(*.w55)		-	Cancel

Part B Results

25-year Post-Development Discharge = 77.5 ft³/s

25-year Post-Development Runoff Volume = 4.432 in (watershed-in) = 4.62 acre-ft

$$\left(\frac{4.432}{12} \text{ ft}\right)$$
(12.50 ac) = 4.62 ac-ft

The Runoff Volume can be accessed on the File Display window by selecting the WinTR-20 Printed Page File.

t Edit Win1	R-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Report	rts Help					
		WinT	'R-20 I	Printed A	^P age F	ile		<u>C</u> lose
			Example					^
		Future	or Develop	ped Conditio	n			_
		Name of	f printed p	page file:				
			TR20.ou					
				STORM 25-Yr				
area or	Drainage	Rain Gage	Runoff		Peak I	low		
Reach	Area	ID or	Amount	Elevation	Time	Rate	Rate	
[dentifier	(sq mi)	Location	(in)	(ft)	(hr)	(cfs)	(csm)	
fract 1	0.020		4.432		11.95	77.54	3970.46	
Line								
Start Time		Flow Va	alues @ tip		of 0.00	09 hr		
(hr)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	
4.441	0.05	0.05	0.05	0.05	0.06	0.06	0.06	
4.501	0.06	0.06	0.06	0.06	0.06	0.06	0.07	
4.561		0.07	0.07	0.07	0.07	0.07	0.07	
4.620		0.08	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.08	
4.680	0.08	0.08	0.09	0.09	0.09	0.09	0.09	
4.740		0.09	0.09	0.09	0.10	0.10	0.10	
4.799		0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.11	0.11	~
4 859	0 11	0 11	0 11	0 11	0 11	0 11	0 12	

Part C Sizing the detention basin

Two approaches can be used to size the detention basin. The first approach is to maximize the storage volume while minimizing the pipe size. Using this approach, the entire runoff volume from the 25-year post-development storm would be stored and released at a slow rate over a long period of time using a small diameter pipe. The second approach is to minimize the storage volume while maximizing the pipe size. Using the second approach, water is released at the maximum rate possible (in this case, the 50-year pre-development peak discharge), thereby minimizing the volume of water that must be stored.

The following table offers a summary of some of the advantages and disadvantages of each approach.

Method	Advantages	Disadvantages
Approach 1		
1. Maximize storage volume	Smaller diameter pipe is less expensive.	Size of area required for deten- tion basin is large.
2. Minimize pipe size	Storage benefits for more frequent storm events are realized because increased runoff for the smaller events is also stored.	Cost of constructing a large storage basin can be expensive.
Approach 2		
3. Minimize storage volume	Size of area required for detention basin is not as large.	Larger diameter pipe is more expensive than that for approach 1.
4. Maximize pipe size	Lower construction costs for smaller storage basin.	Because pipe diameter is so large, there may not be a reduc- tion in peak discharge for more frequent storm events. Increased runoff volume from those more frequent events may pass through the basin without any portion of the increased runoff for those storms being stored.

Note that many storm water management ordinances require a combination of storage volume and reduction in peak discharge. If that is the case, both requirements must be met. However, for this example, a minimum storage volume requirement does not apply. Therefore, to size the basin, one must look only at ways of reducing the peak discharge.

There was not a large increase in peak discharge or storage volume for the developed condition. Peak discharge increased 16 percent from $Q_{50pre} = 66.8$ cubic feet per second to $Q_{25post} = 77.5$ cubic feet per second. Runoff volume increased 10.2 percent from $Q_{50pre} = 4.023$ inches (4.19 acre-ft) to $Q_{25post} = 4.432$ inches (4.62 acre-ft).

The detention basin will have a base area at the spillway crest elevation of 150 feet on a side with side slopes of 3 foot horizontal to 1 foot vertical. This results in a base area of approximately 0.517 acres at the basin bottom. At .77 foot depth in the detention basin, the surface area of the water is 154.6 feet on a side, or 0.549 acre.

Note: The WinTR–55 **Structure Data** window assumes a standard riser / conduit configuration or a straight pipe configuration for evaluating detention basins with pipes. The only other option is a weir configuration. If either of these configurations is unacceptable, use another method to size the detention basin.

A standard riser configuration is chosen for the outlet device. Based upon the amount of control desired in the initial problem statement, it is necessary only to use a pipe of sufficient diameter to reduce the peak discharge from 77.5 cubic feet per second for the post-developed condition to 66.8 cubic feet per second for the pre-developed condition.

Again, rather than beginning with a new file, it is possible to edit the existing developed condition data file created in determining the future (or developed) condition discharge and volume.

Step 1: Start the WinTR–55 Program, and open the Developed Conditions file by selecting **Open** from the file menu and locating the file using the **Open a WinTR–55 data file** window.

🚟 WinTR-55 Main Window 📃 🗖 🔀
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help
😂 🖬 🚭 To 🟊 🏏 🛫 💁 🔼 🥂 🏢 💽 🤗
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology
Project Identification Data
User: User ID State: Missouri
Project: Example 1 County: Franklin
Subtitle: Future or Developed Condition Execution Date: 3/7/2001
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <pre><standard></standard></pre>
Acres
C Square Miles Storm Data Source: Franklin County, MO (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II
Sub-area Entry and Summary
Sub-area Name Sub-area Description Sub-area Flows to Area (ac) Weighted To (br)
Reach/Outlet CN
Tract 1 Developed Land Use Outlet
Project Area: 12.50 (ac)
File: C:\Documents and Settings\helen.moody\Application Data\WinTR-55\Sample 6/25/2008 10:07 AM

Step 2: Edit the User ID, Project name, and Subtitle, as appropriate. Edit Sub-area Name, Sub-area Description, and where the water leaving this sub-area flows in the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet box, as appropriate. In the situation where water flows into a detention basin, the name of the reach containing the structure is entered in the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet box.

📟 WinTR-55 Main Windo	w				
File Options ProjectData Global	Data Run	Help			
🖻 🖩 🚇 To 🔺 🎽 🗡	10 SF 12	△ 🕺 🏛			
WinTR-55 S	mall W	atersh	ed Hy	drology	,
Project Identification Data					
User: User ID	State:	Missouri			•
Project: Example 1	County:	Franklin			-
Subtitle: Future or Developed Conditio	n		Exec	cution Date: 3	/7/2001
Sub-areas are expressed in: Acres Square Miles	Storm Data S	ss Unit Hydrogra Source: Frank ibution Identifier	lin County, A		•
Sub-area Entry and Summary					
Sub-area Name Sub-area Descrip	tion I	area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)
Tract 1 Developed Land Use	Basin/	-	12.50	88	0.135
		Project Area:	12.50 (ac)		
File: C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan	Application D	ata\WinTR-55\	Sample F 5	/19/2008	9:53 AM

Step 3: Click on the Structure Data button to open the Structure Data window. Enter the Structure Name, the surface area at the spillway crest elevation, and the surface area at an elevation above the spillway to define the storage characteristics of the basin. Note: If no surface area above the spillway is entered, the program assumes the basin has vertical sides. Enter the desired pipe sizes for initial evaluation of the structure ratings and the height in feet from the centerline of the outlet pipe to the spillway crest elevation. Note: For the standard riser configuration, this height should be approximately two times the largest pipe diameter evaluated. As pipe diameters are entered, the structure ratings are computed and shown at the bottom of the Structure Data window. Upon completion of this data, click <u>Accept</u> to accept the data and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

itructure BasinA	: Name	▼ C <u>L</u> ea	<u>D</u> elete	<u>R</u> ename	St	ructure	Data
		Po	nd Surface	Area			<u>A</u> ccept
			@ spil	lway crest	0.517	acres	
	(optional)	0.77	feet above	spillway	0.549	acres	<u>P</u> lot
		Diec	harge Descr	intion			<u>C</u> ancel
Spillwa	v Type – – D	oiameter(in)-	nai ge Oesci	iprion		Height (ft)	<u>H</u> elp
Pip		Trial #1	Trial #2	Trial #3	3 Pipe	invert to spillw	ay
O We		36	42	48		8	?
			0.000				
			- Orifice f w Rating				
	1210		2			5-190-101	
Stage	Diameter1 Pipe Head	36(in) Flow	Diameter2 Pipe Head	42(in) Flow	Diameter3 Pipe Head	48(in) Flow	Temporary Storage
(ft)	<u>(ft)</u>	cfs	<u>(ft)</u>	cfs	<u>_(ft)</u>	cfs	(ac-ft)
0.00	6.500	0.000	6.250	0.000	6.000	0.000	0.00
1.50 3.00	8.000 9.500	95.966 104.577	7.750 9.250	128.564 140.455	7.500 9.000	165.189 180.956	0.82
6.00	12.500	119.958	12.250	161.635	12.000	208.950	3.85
15.00	21.500	157.323	21.250	212.886	21.000	276.414	12.43

Step 4: Click the Reach Data button to open the Reach Data window. The name of the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet name as entered on the WinTR-55 Main Window is shown in the Reach Name column. In this case, the sub-area was defined to flow to BasinA. Since the structure is located at the outlet of the watershed, the receiving reach is Outlet. Also, since the sub-area runoff flows through a structure, the Structure Name is entered instead of reach data. This tells the program that the water from the sub-area flows through the structure to the outlet. Click <u>Accept</u> to accept the data and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

¥	Reach Data											
	Reach Data											
	Reach Name	Receiving Reach	Reach Length (ft)	Manning n	Friction Slope (ft/ft)	Bottom Width (ft)	Average Side Slopes	Structure Name				
	BasinA	Outlet 💌						BasinA 💌				
						Ŀ	<u>t</u> elp <u>P</u> lot	<u>C</u> ancel <u>A</u> ccept				
						9	<u>R</u> ea	ch Flow Path				
File	: C:\WinTR-55\Sar	mple Files\Example-11	B.w55				3/28/20	06 11:25 AM				

Step 5: Click the **Run** menu option from the **WinTR–55 Main Window**. On the **Run WinTR–55** window, select the storm to evaluate. Click the **<u>R</u>un** button to execute the run.

🛠 Run WinTR-55	
Run Wi	nTR-55
Check storm(s) to evalua	te:
🗖 2-¥r	🔽 25-Yr
🗍 5-Yr	☐ 50-Yr
🕅 10-Yr	🔲 100-Yr
🔲 1-Уг	
<u>H</u> elp	ncel <u>R</u> un

Step 6: Upon successful execution of the run, the File Display window opens showing the Hydrograph Peak/ Peak Time Table report. By scrolling down through the window, results of the runs for the different pipe sizes selected can be viewed. To review other output, click WinTR-20 Reports or WinTR-55 Reports, and select the reports to view. When complete, click the <u>Close</u> button to close the File Display window and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

File Display		
rint Edit Win	R-20 Reports WinTR-55 Reports Help	
	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	<u>C</u> lose
Vser ID	Example 1 Future or Developed Condition Franklin County, Missouri	<u>^</u>
	Nydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table (Trial #1)	
Sub-Area or Reach Identifier	Peak Flow and Peak Time (hr) by Rainfall Return Period 25-Yr (cfs) (hr)	
SUBAREAS Tract 1	77.54 11.95	
REACHES BasinA Down	77.54 11.95 64.04 12.04	
OUTLET	64.04	
Vser ID	Example 1 Future or Developed Condition Franklin County, Missouri	~
· \Documents and	Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\tr55rpts.out 3/13/2008	10:13 AM

Step 7: To save the data, click File and SaveAs. In the Save a WinTR55 data file as ... window, specify a location and a new file name, and click Save. The data are now saved and the user returns to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Save a WinTR-5	5 data file as				? 🔀
Save in:	📄 Sample Files		•	F 🗈 💣 🎟	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Documents	Example-1A.w5				
My Network	File name:	Example-1C		•	Save Cancel
Places	Save as type:	WinTR-55 Data Files(*.w55)		_	

Part C Results

Peak discharges for the three pipes evaluated are as follows:

36-inch diameter	$64 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$
42-inch diameter	$67.72 \; {\rm ft^{3}\!/\!s}$
48-inch diameter	$70.25 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$

Since the limiting discharge value is 66.8 cubic feet per second, the 36-inch diameter pipe may be used since the pipe discharge does not exceed the limiting value.

From the **Structure Output Table** window, it can be seen that the maximum volume of water stored will be 0.55 acre-foot. This translates to a maximum depth for the 25-year storm event of 1.00 feet.

QØ.	File Dis	play					
Pr	int Edit W	inTR-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Reports	Help			
			Structure	e Output	Table		<u>C</u> lose
	Vser ID		Example Future or Develop Franklin County	ed Condition			^
-			Structure Outp	ut Table			
	Reach Identifie Structure		(PF), Storage Vo by Rainfall Retur		tage (STG)		
	Identifie	r 25-Yr					
	Reach: Bas:						
	Pipe : Bas: 36(in)	LN A					
	PF (cf						
	SV (ac fi						
	STG (f ¹ 42(in)	t) 1.00					
	PF (cfs	s) 67.72					
	SV (ac f						
	STG (f	t) .79					
	48(in)						
	PF (cf:						
	SV (ac fi						
	STG (f	t) .64					
							~
C:\	Documents and	d Settings\quan.quan'	Application DataWinTR	-55\tr55rpts.out		6/9/2008	10:19 AM 🛛 🎢

Example 2

Evaluating Larger Watersheds and User-defined Storm Data

Background

A small community in Any County, Any State, has flooded multiple times in the last several years. The community wants to reduce flood damages and has requested assistance in evaluating peak discharges in the upper reaches of the watershed. A schematic of the watershed appears below.

Note: Since there is no listing in the rainfall database for a location called Any County, Any State, the user must input custom storm data for this job.



Watershed Data

Land Use Details

Sub-area	Land Use	Area by	hydrolog	ic soil gro	up (acre
		Α	B	С	D
Upper Main Creek	Residential districts, 2-acre lots			40	
	Pasture, fair condition			80	
	Woods, fair condition			55	
County Road Branch	Residential districts, 2-acre lots			30	
	Meadow, cont. grass			60	
	Woods, fair condition			110	
Middle Main Creek	Farmsteads		10		
	Pasture, good condition		30	10	
	Woods-Grass, fair condition		20		
Upper East Tributary	Residential districts, 2-acre lots			60	
	Woods-Grass, fair condition			40	10
	Woods, fair condition			10	10
Lower East Tributary	Farmsteads		10		
	Pasture, fair condition		25	5	
	Woods-Grass, fair condition		45	25	
Upper West Branch	Industrial		15		
	Pasture, fair condition		10		20
	Woods, fair condition		15		5
Lower West Branch	Impervious, paved parking lots			5	
	Industrial			15	
	Residential districts, 1-acre lots			10	
	Pasture, fair condition			20	
	Woods, fair condition			25	
Lower Main Creek	Open space, lawns, fair condition		15		
	Impervious, paved parking lots		15		
	Commercial and business		15		
	Residential districts, 0.25-acre lots		85		

Where do the Land Use Details data come from?

The land use data for the watershed may be derived using GIS, if GIS coverages exist for the watershed area, developed from current aerial photographs, or be determined from a watershed site visit. The hydrologic soil group data may be obtained from the current soil survey for the county or counties in which the watershed is located.

Time of concentration details

Sub-area		Sheet	Flow	Shall	ow concen	trated flow	Open cl	nannel flow
	length (ft)	slope (ft/ft)	surface description	length (ft)	slope (ft/ft)	surface description	length (ft)	velocity (ft/s)
Upper Main Creek	75	0.047	Dense grass	425	0.047	Unpaved	2,500	2.66
County Road Branch	75	0.067	Light woods	425	0.067	Unpaved	2,100	2.30
Middle Main Creek	65	0.052	Short grass	385	0.052	Unpaved	925	2.40
Upper East Tributary	50	0.110	Smooth surface	285	0.110	Unpaved	1,465	1.53
Lower East Tributary	100	0.051	Light woods	825	0.051	Unpaved	740	2.73
Upper West Branch	60	0.092	Smooth surface	340	0.092	Unpaved	1,705	1.50
Lower West Branch	100	0.045	Smooth surface	1,000	0.045	Unpaved	510	1.51
Lower Main Creek	100	0.036	Smooth surface	1,465	0.036	Unpaved	1,100	1.10

Where do time of concentration details data come from?

Time of concentration data should be carefully estimated for each sub-area. Length and slope for individual flow types (sheet, shallow concentrated, and open channel) can be obtained from USGS topographical maps, aerial photographs, and field observation.

Sheet flow and shallow concentrated flow lengths may be difficult to develop. The best way to estimate these values is to visit the site and determine the actual flow paths. However, these values can also be estimated from topographical maps and aerial photos.

Open channel flow paths typically appear as blue lines on USGS topographical maps or as obvious ditches or stream channels on aerial photographs and, therefore, are much easier to determine.

Surface codes for sheet flow are best determined by making a site visit. Carefully examine the land use along watershed divides. Surface codes for shallow concentrated flow are simply paved or unpaved. This is the simplest to determine.

The flow velocity must be determined for open channel flows. Either take bankfull velocity information from a previously developed water surface profile model, or entering the Manning's *n* value, use survey data to develop cross-sectional flow area, wetted perimeter, and slope for the stream length in question. Experienced users may simply estimate the flow velocity in the channel. Make certain that selected values are representative of the entire open channel flow length and not just one segment of the open channel flow path.

Reach name	Receiving Reach	Reach length (ft)	Manning's <i>n</i>	Slope (ft/ft)	Bottom width (ft)	Side slope (Z:1)
Main Stem 1	Main Stem 2	540	0.065	0.003	20	55
East Reach	Main Stem 2	685	0.065	0.006	30	33
West Reach	Main Stem 2	810	0.065	0.011	35	40
Main Stem 2	Outlet	640	0.065	0.007	45	86

Reach data

Where do reach data come from?

Reach data must be derived for each stream segment that receives water from an upstream sub-area or another reach.

Rating curves are developed for the reaches that describe the flow characteristics of the reaches. A particular cross section surveyed within the reach in question is picked to be representative of the entire reach, and the data for that cross section is used. That cross section may be located anywhere within the reach, but will represent the entire length of that reach.

Ratings for the reach are developed using the Manning's *n* values, slope, bottom width of the cross section, and side slopes. It is important to estimate these values for the overall valley cross section and not just the channel section. These values may differ drastically between the channel and the valley. The goal is to estimate a rating curve that represents both.

Rainfall data

The user must enter Any State and Any County in the state and county entry boxes on the Main Window, or the Main Window will not match the second Main Window on the next page.

Rainfall data for the watershed in Any County, Any State, is:

	24-hour p	recipitati	on amoun	t (in) by r	eturn peri	iod
1-year	2-year	5-year	10-year	25-year	50-year	100-year
3.0	3.5	4.5	5.1	5.8	6.5	7.2

Entering storm data

- **Step 1:** Select Global Data from the **WinTR–55 Main Window** menu.
- Step 2: Under Global Data, select Storm Data.
- **Step 3:** When the **Storm Data** window opens, enter the rainfall amount by return frequency for the desired storms, and select the appropriate rainfall distribution from the drop-down menu.
- **Step 4:** Once the rainfall distribution type is selected (Type II rainfall distribution is applicable for this location) and the rainfall amounts have been entered, click **<u>A</u>ccept** to accept the data and return to the main window.

Note: The user should enter the state and county name on the main window BEFORE going to the **Storm Data** window to enter the custom rainfall amount.

For this example problem, the **Storm Data** window appears as follows upon completion of data entry. Note: Since Any County, Any State, is not listed in the rainfall database included with WinTR–55, and the user entered those names on the **WinTR–55 Main Window** forcing the switch to Region / Locale, the **NRCS Storm Data** button on the **Storm Data** window is disabled, and the note indicates data is not provided for regions / locales.

Click the <u>A</u>ccept button to return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

😇 Storm Data		
Storm Data		
 User-provided custom storm data NRCS does not provide storm data for regions / locales. Therefore, the command button below has been temporarily disabled. 	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)
NRCS Storm Data Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: Type II	2 5 10 25 50	3.5 4.5 5.1 5.8 6.5
<u>P</u> <u>H</u> elp <u>Cancel</u> <u>Accept</u>		7.2
File: <new file=""> 3/30</new>	/2007 9:4	4 AM 🥢

🚟 WinTR-55 Main								
	tData GlobalData Run							
🖻 🖪 🎒 👥 🕯	Тс 🔺 🌾 🎽	2 SF 4	△ 🕺 🏛		?			
w	nTR-55 Sm	all M	/atersh	ed H	dvi	drology	,	
Project Identification				· · ·				_
User: ccs		Region:	Any State				-	
Project: Example	2	Locale:	Any County				•	
Subtitle: test				_	Exec	cution Date: 3	/30/2007	
Sub-areas are expi	Di	mensionle	ss Unit Hydrogra	aph: 🤇	tand	ard>	•	·
C Square Miles			Source: User-			tom storm da	ta	
		ainfall Disti	ibution Identifie	: Туре	II			
Sub-area Entry and	Summary	C. C. In	area Flows to			Weighted		
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description		area Flows 10 ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	CN	Tc (hr)	
			Project Area	(ac)				
File: <new file=""></new>					3	/30/2007	9:48 AM	- //

Upon completion of data entry, the WinTR-55 Main Window should appear as follows:

File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help Image: Control of the state Image: Control
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology Project Identification Data Region: Any State User: ccs Region: Any State Project: Example 2 Locale: Any County Subtitle: test Execution Date: 2/11/2003 Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: (standard) Image: Standard) Sub-areas Storn Data Source: User-provided custom storm data Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II
Project Identification Data User: ccs Project: Example 2 Subtitle: fest Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: Image: Arrow Arr
Project Identification Data User: ccs Project: Example 2 Subtitle: fest Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: Image: Arrow Arr
User: ccs Region: Any State Project: Example 2 Locale: Any County Subtitle: test Execution Date: 2/11/2003 Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Arrest in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Arrest in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Arrest in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: standard> Image: Sub-areas Entry and Summary Storn Data Source: User-provided custom storm data Image: Sub-area Entry and Summary Sub-areas Elonge to be areas Elon
Project: Example 2 Subtitle: test Sub-areas are expressed in: Execution Date: 2/11/2003 Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: Acres: Storm Data Source: Square Miles Storm Data Source: Sub-area Entry and Summary Sub area Elory to
Subtitle: test Execution Date: 2/11/2003 Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> Image: Acres! Storm Data Source: User-provided custom storm data. Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II</standard>
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> Image: Acress in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> Image: Acress in: Storm Data Source: User-provided custom storm data. Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II</standard></standard>
Contraction in the second state in the second state is a se
Sub-area Name Sub-area Description Sub-area Flows to Area (ac) Weighted To (br)
Reach/Outlet Area (ac) CN ((i)
UpperMain MainStem1 🔽 175.00 77 0.423
CountyRoad MainStem1 🔽 200.00 73 0.450
MiddleMain MainStem2 🔽 70.00 66 0.211
UpperEast EastReach 💌 130.00 77 0.287
LowerEast MainStem2 110.00 70 0.373
UpperWest WestReach 💌 65.00 77 0.342
LowerWest MainStem2 75.00 81 0.189
LowerMain Outlet 🔽 130.00 79 0.426
Project Area: 955 (ac) File: C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\Sample Fi 3/30/2007 9:46 AM

The 2-, 5-, 10-, 25-, 50-, and 100-year storm events were analyzed and peak discharges obtained for each sub-area and reach. The Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table contains a listing of peak discharges for each of the sub-areas and reaches.

WinTR–55 provides the following output data by sub-area and reach:

🛿 File Display		
rint Edit WinT	R-20 Reports WinTR-55 Reports Help	
	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	<u>C</u> lose
ccs	Example 2	<u>^</u>
	test Region: Any State Locale: Any County	
	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	
Sub-Area	Peak Flow and Peak Time (hr) by Rainfall Return Period	
or Reach	2-Yr 5-Yr 10-Yr 25-Yr 50-Yr 100-Yr	
Identifier	(cfs) (cfs) (cfs) (cfs) (cfs) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr)	
		-
SUBAREAS	238.68 374.75 461.00 563.70 667.55 771.28	
oppermarn	12.16 12.15 12.14 12.14 12.14 12.12	
CountyRoad	210.65 349.76 439.14 548.08 659.56 772.67 12.17 12.16 12.15 12.16 12.15 12.16	
MiddleMain	66.78 123.68 161.77 208.63 257.83 308.30	
	12.05 12.03 12.03 12.03 12.02 12.02	
UpperEast	216.21 338.62 414.28 505.19 598.04 691.70	
	12.07 12.07 12.07 12.06 12.06 12.05	
LowerEast	106.90 186.20 238.00 300.97 366.78 432.73	
	12.14 12.13 12.13 12.11 12.11 12.10	
ImperViet	99.73 156.06 191.43 233.60 276.23 319.74	
oppermest	12.10 12.10 12.10 12.10 12.10 12.08	
LowerWest	172.93 257.14 309.28 370.29 432.36 494.33 12.01 12.01 12.00 12.01 12.00 12.00	
LowerMain	195.22 299.62 363.91 441.53 518.96 599.27 12.14 12.14 12.13 12.14 12.13 12.14	
	12.17 12.17 12.19 12.19 12.19	
REACHES MainStem1	448.17 723.38 898.13 1107.93 1324.56 1541.91	
	12.16 12.15 12.14 12.14 12.14 12.15	
Down	427.46 694.49 863.71 1067.59 1277.31 1487.27	
	12.24 12.21 12.20 12.19 12.20 12.20	×
Decumente	Settings\guan.guan\Application Data\WinTR-55\tr55rpts.out 3/30/2007	9:49 AM
volocuments and	Settings squari, quari veppiloation Data swin i h-postroorpts, out 3730/2007	J 3.43 AM

Results

To evaluate the output results and make a judgment as to whether results are reasonable, it is beneficial to understand how WinTR–55 processes the data, and in particular, how the hydrographs are added in WinTR–55.

In the Watershed Peak Table, peak discharges are listed by sub-area and by reach. The Sub-Area Peak Discharges represent the peak discharge values obtained in determining the runoff contributed solely by a particular sub-area. So, for this example, the peak discharge for the UpperMain sub-area for the 5-year storm event is listed at 375 cubic feet per second. This peak is that obtained for the UpperMain sub-area, solely. Likewise, for the MiddleMain sub-area, the 5-year storm event peak discharge is 124 cubic feet per second. Again, this represents only the peak discharge produced by the rainfall falling on the MiddleMain sub-area. Obviously, the MiddleMain sub-area also receives water from the UpperMain and CountyBranch sub-areas; but the sub-area peak discharge, as listed in the Watershed Peak Table, is that produced by rainfall on the MiddleMain sub-area and to this point does not include water coming from outside of that sub-area. In short, the sub-area peak discharges are independent peaks and have not been routed or added to produce any composite hydrographs.

The peak discharges by reach are added and routed and represent composite hydrographs. However, it is necessary to take a close look at these peaks to understand how the WinTR-55 routing procedure works. As stated previously, the peak discharge for the UpperMain sub-area for the 5-year storm event is 375 cubic feet per second. The peak discharge for the CountyRoad sub-area for the same storm event is 350 cubic feet per second. Runoff from both of these hydrographs flow through the MiddleMain sub-area via MainStem1 reach. The peak for MainStem1 reach in the Watershed Peak Table has a value of 723 cubic feet per second. This peak represents the peak of the added hydrographs for the UpperMain and CountyRoad sub-areas. That is, the hydrographs for UpperMain and CountyRoad sub-areas added together produce a peak of 723 cubic feet per second for the 5-year storm event. Notice, also, that there is a Peak Discharge of 694 cubic feet per second listed on the Watershed Peak Table for the Downstream end of MainStem1

reach. This value represents the peak discharge for the routed hydrograph resulting from the runoff from the UpperMain and CountyRoad sub-areas. In summary, the runoff from UpperMain and CountyRoad produced hydrographs that when added together produced a peak of 723 cubic feet per second at the upper end of the MainStem1 reach. When this hydrograph was routed through the MainStem1 reach, a hydrograph with a peak discharge of 694 cubic feet per second resulted. At this point, the runoff from the MiddleMain sub-area is not yet included.

For this example, the peaks listed for MainStem2 reach become somewhat more complicated because two tributaries enter the system. However, applying the concepts of adding the hydrographs and developing peaks as explained in the previous paragraph, it should be obvious to the user that the peak discharge at the upper end of the MainStem2 reach represents the combination of the following:

- Resultant hydrograph obtained from the runoff produced by the UpperMain and CountyBranch sub-areas routed through MainStem1 reach.
- Runoff hydrograph produced by MiddleMain subarea.
- Runoff hydrograph produced by UpperWest subarea routed through WestReach reach.
- Runoff hydrograph produced by LowerWest subarea.
- Runoff hydrograph produced by UpperEast subarea routed through EastReach.
- Runoff hydrograph produced by LowerEast subarea.

From the Watershed Peak Table, the peak at this point for the 5-year storm event is 1,529 cubic feet per second. Notice at the downstream end of this reach that the peak is reduced to 1,518 cubic feet per second. The 1,518 cubic feet per second represents the peak of the hydrograph as it is routed downstream through MainStem2 reach. The only thing left at this point is to add the runoff produced by the LowerMain sub-area. The hydrograph for the LowerMain sub-area produces a peak discharge of 300 cubic feet per second. When these final two hydrographs are added, the resultant peak at the watershed outlet is 1,808 cubic feet per second.

Example 2—Hydrology Peak/Peak Time Table

Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table								
Sub-area	Peak Flow and Peak Time (hr) by rainfall return period							
or Reach	2-yr (ft ³ /s) (hr)	5-yr (ft ³ /s) (hr)	10-yr (ft ³ /s) (hr)	25-yr (ft ³ /s) (hr)	50-yr (ft ³ /s) (hr)			
SUB-AREAS								
Upper Main	238.68	374.75	461.00	563.70	667.55	771.28		
	12.16	12.15	12.14	12.14	12.14	12.12		
CountyRoad	210.65	349.76	439.14	548.08	659.56	772.67		
	12.17	12.16	12.15	12.16	12.15	12.16		
MiddleMain	66.78	123.68	161.77	208.63	257.83	308.30		
	12.05	12.03	12.03	12.03	12.02	12.02		
UpperEast	216.21	338.62	414.28	505.19	598.04	691.70		
	12.07	12.07	12.07	12.06	12.06	12.05		
LowerEast	106.90	186.20	238.00	300.97	366.78	432.73		
	12.14	12.13	12.13	12.11	12.11	12.10		
UpperWest	99.73	156.06	191.43	233.60	276.23	319.74		
	12.10	12.10	12.10	12.10	12.10	12.08		
LowerWest	172.93	257.14	309.28	370.29	432.36	494.33		
	12.01	12.01	12.00	12.01	12.00	12.00		
Lower Main	195.22	299.62	363.91	441.53	518.96	599.27		
	12.14	12.14	12.13	12.14	12.13	12.14		
REACHES								
MainStem1	448.17	723.38	898.13	1,107.93	1,324.56	1,541.91		
	12.16		12.14					
Down	427.46	694.49	863.71	1,067.59	1,277.31	1,487.27		
	12.24		12.20					
MainStem2	928.30	1529.20	1912.16	2375.30	2849.98	3328.69		
			12.13					
Down			1898.20					
			12.18					
EastReach								
			12.07					
Down								
			12.13					
WestReach								
			12.10					
Down			189.71					
			12.17					
OUTLET								

Region: Any State, Locale: Any County Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table

Example 3

Custom Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph

This example demonstrates the use of a custom Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph (DUH) instead of the standard one preloaded in the program. In certain areas of the country, different DUH's are applicable due to variations among geomorphic regions and differences in urbanization, channelization, and available storage (in wetlands, flood plains, and/or reservoirs) in watersheds. Users should contact the NRCS state conservation engineer if they have questions on whether to use the standard DUH in a location. This example uses the Coastal Delmarva DUH named for Delaware, Maryland, and Virginia.

This Delmarva DUH is currently part of the program install package, but example 3 describes it as though it is being entered for the first time for illustrative purposes.

Background

Owen Davies owns a 12.5-acre site in Talbot County on Maryland's eastern shore. Forest covers 1.5 acres of the property, and the remaining 11 acres are presently in Silver Queen sweet corn production, planted in straight rows. He uses conventional tillage with no special conservation practices, and the vegetative cover is typically in good condition. The soils on the cropland portion of the property are hydrologic soil group C. Hydrologic soil group D soils underlie the wooded part.

His plot is almost rectangular, with the cropland located on higher ground and the wooded part in a forested stream corridor, although the stream itself lies outside of his property. No defined channels run through his property, but there is evidence of sheet flows and shallow concentrated flows. The sheet flow path is 100 feet long with a slope of 10 percent. The shallow concentrated flow path through the cornfield is 858 feet long, also at a slope of 10 percent. The path of the flow through the woods is 131 feet long at a slope of 9.5 percent.

Owen has considered leaving crop residue on his field to reduce erosion and pollutant discharge into the stream. His daughter Branwen wants to show him what a difference crop residue can make. She will use WinTR–55 to calculate the peak discharge from a range of storms for his land. She will also use the Delmarva Unit Hydrograph (Welle, Woodward, and Fox Moody 1980), which applies to the eastern shore of Maryland, instead of the standard NRCS one. The Delmarva Unit Hydrograph was developed specifically for this area and reflects the discharge measured by USGS stream gages over years of monitoring.

Solution

This analysis has three parts. First, enter the Delmarva DUH into the data file. Second, determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the present field tillage condition. Third, determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the future condition with crop residue. Since the pollutants are carried by the runoff from the fields, reducing runoff results in a reduction in soluble pollutant load, if other factors are constant.

Part 1 Enter custom dimensionless unit hydrograph

Step 1: Branwen starts the WinTR-55 program, and selects New from the pulldown choice list for File. She enters User ID, Project Name, Subtitle, State and County, and specifies sub-area units as acres. The Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph, the Storm Data Source and the Rainfall Distribution identifier have default values given when the program starts up, based on the last file used. The default DUH is the standard NRCS one, with a peak factor of 484.

R	Win	FR-55	Main Windo	w							X
F	ile Opt	ions Pro	ojectData GlobalD)ata	Run	Help					
	₴◨鎶 ◕ੁਙ◣ў ゞ ฃӄぇ∟ Ҟ іш⊾ ?										
1	WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology										
	Project Identification Data										
	User:	bmd	2303	St	ate:	Maryland				-	1
	Project:	Dad's far	m	Co	ounty:	Talbot				-	
	Subtitle:					1.0001	_	-	ution Datas =		
	Subuue.	Corntielo	l near Bug Creek					Exec	oution Date: 5	/19/2008	
Ĩ		is are expr	ressed in:	Dime	nsionle:	s Unit Hydrogra	aph: <st< th=""><th>tand</th><th>ard></th><th>•</th><th>•</th></st<>	tand	ard>	•	•
	 Acr C Squ 	es are Miles		Storm	n Data S	ource: Frank	lin Coun	ty, A	AO (NRCS)		
Ľ				Rainf	all Distr	ibution Identifier	: Туре І	I			
ſ	Sub-area	Entry and 9	Summary								
	Sub-ar	ea Name	Sub-area Descript	ion		irea Flows to ich/Outlet	Area (d	ic)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
						Project Area:	(ac)				
F	ile: <new fi<="" td=""><td>le></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>5</td><td>/19/2008</td><td>10:45 AM</td><td>_</td></new>	le>						5	/19/2008	10:45 AM	_

Branwen can click on **GlobalData** in the **WinTR–55 Main Window** menu bar and then on **Storm Data** in the pulldown choice list (a) or on the Storm Data icon (b) on the button bar to bring up the **Storm Data** window.

GlobalData	Run Help	V.	
😜 Storm Da Rf Custom R	ta Rainfall Distributions	(b)	Storm Data icor
	nless Unit Hydrograph		

(a) Pulldown choice list

Storm Data							
Storm Data							
Franklin County, MO (NRCS) To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Talbot County, MD, click on the command button below. NRCS Storm Data Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: Type II	Rainfall Return Period (yr) 2 5 10 25 50 100	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in) 3.5 4.5 5.1 5.8 6.5 7.2					
	1	3					
<u>P</u> <u>H</u> elp <u>Cancel</u> <u>A</u> ccept							
File: <new file=""> 9/17/</new>	/2008 9:34	4 AM					

Clicking the **<u>NRCS</u> Storm Data** button will fill in the data for Talbot County, Maryland. Maryland uses the Type II Rainfall Distribution.

🖉 Storm Data							
Storm Data							
Talbot County, MD (NRCS) To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Talbot County, MD, click on the command button below.	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)					
<u>NRCS Storm Data</u> Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: Type II	5 10 25 50 100	3.4 4.5 5.3 6 6.8 7.6					
P Help Cancel Accept File: <new file=""> 3/29/</new>		2.8					

By clicking the **Accept** button, Branwen selects this as the Storm Data Source, which reflects on the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. She is ready to concentrate on the DUH.

🚟 WinTR-55 Ma	in Window							
File Options Proj	File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help							
28 8 3 2	≝III 🚳 🗶 To 🔺 🛒 🦅 🐨 🛒 🐨 🖉 🖉 🚝 🖾 🤗							
M	/inTR-55 Sma	л м	/atersh	ed Hy	drology	,		
⊢ Project Identificati			arersn	cu iiy	al olog ;	di seria di	_	
User: bmd		State:	Maryland			-		
Project: Dad's f	arm (County:	Talbot			-		
Subtitle: Cornfi	eld near Bug Creek			Exe	cution Date: 6	/25/2008		
,				_				
Sub-areas are e>	. Dim		ss Unit Hydrogra	1		-	·	
🔿 Square Mile	·2		Source: Talbo) (NRCS)			
– Sub-area Entry an		nfall Dist	ibution Identifier	: Type II				
Sub-area Name	T	Sub-	area Flows to	Area (ac)	Weighted	Tc (hr)	1	
Sub-area Nome	Sub-area Description	Re	ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	CN	ic (iii)		
			Project Area:	(ac)			1	
File: <new file=""></new>					6/25/2008	12:12 PM	_	

Step 2: Branwen visited the Talbot County Agricultural Service Center and has a table with the values for the Delmarva DUH. She can click on GlobalData in the WinTR-55 Main Window menu bar and then on Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph in the pulldown choice list (a) or click on the icon for the dimensionless unit hydrograph (b) on the button bar to bring up the Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph window.

GlobalData	Run Help						
🤪.Storm Da	🥁.Storm Data						
R√ Custom Rainfall Distributions							
Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph							

2	Z
---	---

(b) Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph icon

(a) Pulldown choice list

🔼 Dimensionless Ur	nit Hydrograf	h	
Dimensionle	ss Unit	Hydro	graph
Local Hydrograph(s)			•
	-	<u>R</u> ename	D <u>e</u> lete
		# Points	
Dimensionless Hydrog)raph Points		
% <u>H</u> el	p <u>P</u> lot	Done	

Step 3: The **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograp**h window allows entry of a custom DUH. Branwen enters Delmarva for the DUH in the Local Hydrograph combo entry box. She then enters the points that define the DUH in the Dimensionless Hydrograph Points grid. The points should begin and end at 0.0 and should be no greater than 1.0. The program will calculate and show the number of points automatically.

🛆 Dimensi	onless Un	it Hydrog	raph				
Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph							
Local Hydrog)raph(s)				·		
delmarva			- <u>R</u> ena	me D <u>e</u>	lete		
delmarva: -			# Po	pints 50			
Dimension	ess Hydrogi	raph Points					
0.33100	0.29600	0.26500	0.23700	0.21200			
0.19000	0.17000	0.15300	0.13800	0.12300			
0.10900	0.09700	0.08600	0.07600	0.06600			
0.05700	0.04900	0.04100	0.03300	0.02700			
0.02400	0.02100	0.01800	0.01500	0.01300			
0.01200	0.01100	0.00900	0.00800	0.00800			
0.00600	0.00600	0.00500	0.00500	0.00000			
					-		
Plot Done C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-{							

Step 4: If she wants, she can click on the **Plot** button and plot the DUH. The second line of the title gives the path where her work is located. Closing the plot returns her to the **Dimensionless Unit Hydrograp**h window, and she can click on the **Done** button to save the hydrograph and return to the main window.



Step 5: After returning to the WinTR-55 Main Window, she must select the Delmarva Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph from the choices displayed by the DUH pulldown for the program to actually use the Delmarva hydrograph in its calculations. After highlighting Delmarva in the pulldown choice list, she double clicks on it to enter it as her choice for use. If she wants to use this DUH in another job, all she needs to do is click on its name in the hydrograph list during the other job's data entry.

WinTR-55 Main	Window						
File Options Project	:Data GlobalData R	un Help					
28	≥∎⊜ Q To LY ¥ ¥%KA X mL ?						
Wi	nTR-55 Sr	nall W	atersh	ed Hv	drology	,	
Project Identification							
User: bmd		State:	Maryland			•	
Project: Dad's far	m	County:	Talbot			•	
Subtitle: Cornfield	l near Bug Creek		,	Exe	cution Date: 6	/25/2008	
Sub-areas are expr	essed in:	Dimensionles	s Unit Hydrogr	aph: kstand	lard>	-	
C Square Miles		Storm Data S	ource: Talbo	t Cour ^k stand delma	lard>		
		Rainfall Distri	bution Identifie	: Type II	i vu	5	
Sub-area Entry and S	Summary				I	, ,	
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Descripti	on I	rea Flows to ch/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
			Project Area	(ac)			
File: <new file=""></new>					6/25/2008	12:24 PM	

Part 2 Determine peak discharge and runoff volume for the present field tillage conditions.

Step 1: Branwen now enters the Sub-area Name, Sub-area Description, and where the water leaving this sub-area flows in the Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet box to set up her watershed, ready to do her land use and time of concentration calculations.

📟 WinTR-55 Main V	Window						×	
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help								
≝∎@ €To⊾y ¥ ≌%KL X ≣⊑ ?								
	nTR-55 Sma					,		
Project Identification D			u.c.o					
User: bmd		itate: Maryland						
Project: Dad's farm	n C	County: Talbot						
Subtitle: Cornfield near Bug Creek Execution Date: 6/25/2008					/25/2008			
Sub-areas are expres Acres Square Miles	Storn	Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: delmarva Storm Data Source: Talbot County, MD (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II						
Sub-area Entry and Su			Dation Techaner	. Type II				
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description		area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)		
corn1 f	ield by Bug Creek	Outlet	•	0.00				
			Project Area:	(ac)				
			riopornica.	(00)				
File: <new file=""></new>				6	/25/2008	12:33 PM	1.	

Step 2: Branwen can double click on the Area (ac) label, the Weighted CN label, or on either of the two blank cells in the entry grid below them to open the Land Use Details window. In the Land Use Details window, for each land use, she enters the area involved under the appropriate hydrologic soil group. She can click the Summary Screen On to see all her land use categories. Clicking <u>Accept</u> returns the program to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Sub-area	▲ Nome	Clear		Land	l Use De	tails		
	e Categories Dan Area 🛛 🕤 Developing Urba	m G C latura			Other Agric	ulture C	Arid Rangeland	
, Ort	an Area So Developing Orba	n 🖲 Cultivati	-					
	Cot Land use for u	1			cres) for Hydrol B CN			
TIL TIMA		w [SR] (good)	Area 11.000	HSG C	BUCN		D C1	<u> </u> _
allow	Bare se Woods (good)	ι ν [οη] (γουα)	1.500	D	86	91	94	
allow	Crop residue (CR)	poor	1.300	76	85	90		
allow	Crop residue (CR)	good		74	83	88		
		3			00			
low crop	Straight row (SR)	poor		72	81	88	91	,
	Straight row (SR)	good		67	78	11.000 85		
	SR + Crop residue	poor		71	80	87		
	SR + Crop residue	good		64	75	82	85	5
	Contoured (C)	poor		70	79	84	81	B
	Contoured (C)	good		65	75	82	80	6
	C + Crop residue	poor		69	78	83	87	7
	C + Crop residue	good		64	74	81	85	5
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	poor		66	74	80	82	2
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	good		62	71	78	81	1
	C&T + Crop residue	poor		65	73	79	81	1
Project /	Area(ac) — Summary Screen	— Sub-Area—						
×	12.50 C Off @ Or	Area (ac)	12.50	Weid	hted CN: 84	<u>H</u> elp	Cancel Ac	cept
,			,		1.01			
								8
								_

The sub-area and runoff curve number now appear in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window.

📟 WinTR-55 Mair	n Window						×
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help							
28.8	Tc 🔺 🌾 👻	56	∆ 🕺 ₫	K ?			
Wi	inTR-55 Sma	II W	/atersh	ed Hy	drology	,	
Project Identification				•			
User: bmd	s	State: Maryland				•	
Project: Dad's fai	rm C	County: Talbot					
Subtitle: Cornfield	Subtitle: Cornfield near Bug Creek Execution Date: 6/25/2008						
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: delmarva Acres Storm Data Source: Talbot County, MD (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II							
Sub-area Entry and Summary							
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description		area Flows to ach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
corn1	field by Bug Creek	Outlet	-	12.50	84		
			Project Area	: 12.50 (ac)			
			Project Area.	12.50 (dc)			
File: <new file=""></new>				6	/25/2008	12:42 PM	1
Step 3: Branwen opens the Time of Concentration Details window the same way as the Land Use Details window. She enters the appropriate information to compute the sub-area time of concentration and clicks <u>Accept</u> to return to the WinTR-55 Main Window. The note below the Time of Concentration Details window reminds her that since the calculated time of concentration is 0.094 hours, it will be replaced by the minimum allowed value of 0.1 hour.

To Time of Concentration Details								
Sub-area Name Sub-area Name Rename Clear Corn1 Rename Clear 3.4 Time of Concentration Detail							etails	
Flow Type	Length (ft)	Slope (ft/ft)	Surface (Manning's n)	n	Area (ft²)	WP (ft)	Velocity (f/s)	Time (hr)
Sheet	100	0.1000	Cultivated <= 20% residue (0.06) 💌					0.040
Shallow Concentrated	858	0.1000	Unpaved 👻					0.047
Shallow Concentrated	131	0.0950	Unpaved 👻	1				0.007
Channel								
Channel								
Total	1,089						3.2181	0.094
* - Your computed subarea Tc is less than, and will be replaced with, the required minumum of 0.1 hours.								
File: <new file=""></new>						3.	/29/2006	9:59 AM

The sub-area time of concentration now appears in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the **WinTR-55 Main window**.

🚟 WinTR-55 Mai	n Window						X
File Options Projec	tData GlobalData Run	Help					
FB	Tc 🔺 🖉 🖉	55 12	<u> </u>	K ?]		
W	inTR-55 Sma	II W	atersh	ed Hy	drology	/	
Project Identification	n Data		·····	•			1
User: bmd	S	tate:	Maryland			•	
Project: Dad's fa	urm C	County:	Talbot			-	
Subtitle: Cornfiel	d near Bug Creek			Exec	cution Date: 6	/25/2008	
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: delmarva Acres Storm Data Source: Talbot County, MD (NRCS) Sub-area Entry and Summary Storm Data Source: Type II]
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description		rea Flows to ch/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)	
corn1	field by Bug Creek	Outlet	-	12.50	84	0.100	
			Project Area:	12.50 (ac)			
File: <new file=""></new>				6	6/25/2008	12:45 PM	- 1

Step 4: Branwen clicks the Run menu option from the **WinTR-55 Main Window**, or the **Run** button, *A*, to open the **Run WinTR-55** window and selects the storm events for which she would like output. Then she clicks the **<u>Run</u>** button to execute the run. While the program is running, a processing bar appears and displays the program's progress as a series of little blue rectangles that runs from left to right. This reassures Branwen that something is happening, even if she is not sure what. The appearance of this processing bar excludes user entry of new data.

🛠 Run WinTR-55						
Run WinTR-55						
Check storm(s) to evalua	ite:					
🔽 2-Yr	🔽 25-Yr					
▼ 5-Yr	🔽 50-Yr					
🔽 10-Yr	🔽 100-Yr					
V 1-Yr						
<u>H</u> elp <u>C</u> a	ncel <u>R</u> un					

🛠 Run WinTR-55	×
Run WinTR-55	
- Processing	-
₽	

Step 5: When the run is complete, the File Display window opens showing the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. Branwen can review other output by clicking WinTR- 20 Reports or WinTR-55 Reports, and selecting the reports to view. She clicks <u>Close</u> to close the File Display window and return to the Win-TR-55 Main Window.

🛿 File Display	1							
Print Edit Win1	R-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Rep	orts Help					
		Hydro	graph F	Peak/Pe	eak Tim	ie Tabl	e	[<u>C</u> lose
ccs			Dad's f field near ot County,	Bug Creek	L			
		Hydrogra	ph Peak/Pe	ak Time Ta	ble			
Sub-Area or Reach Identifier	2-Yr	Flow and P 5-Yr (cfs) (hr)	10-Yr	25-Yr (cfs)	50-Yr	100-Yr	1-Yr (cfs) (hr)	
SUBAREAS corn1	28.84 12.01				74.71 11.95		21.18 12.01	
REACHES								
OUTLET	28.84	43.41	54.16	63.74	74.71	85.70	21.18	
\Documents and	d Sattings) av av	auan\Applicati	on Distaliu/inTi	D. 55\tr55rpto a	su te	3/29/20	10-0	11 AM

Step 6: From the **WinTR–55 Main Window**, Branwen can click on the **Output Definition** button, *IIII*, to get a list of output summary reports available for printing or viewing. She selects the Watershed Peak Table to show her Dad.

🗰 Output Definition 📃 🗖 🔁
Output Definition
Available Reports:
Current data description
🖵 Storm Data
🔽 Watershed Peak Table
🔲 Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table
📕 Structure Output Table
🔲 Sub-Area Summary Table
🔽 Reach Summary Table
🔲 Sub-Area Time of Concentration Details
🔲 Sub-Area Land Use and Curve Number Details
🔽 Reach Channel Rating Details
📕 Structure Description
📕 Structure Rating Details
Print To: C Printer/File • Report Viewer Help Reset View Close

The menu items of the **File Display** window will let her view and print various WinTR–20 and WinTR–55 reports.

/inTR-20 Reports Win	WinTR-55 Reports Help
Input File	Current data description
Printed Page File	Storm Data
Error File	Watershed Peak Table
Debug File	Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table
-	Structure Output Table
	Sub-Area Summary Table
	🖌 Reach Summary Table
	Tc Sub-Area Time of Concentration Details
	🔮 Sub-Area Land Use and Curve Number Details
	Reach Channel Rating Details
	Structure Description
	Structure Rating Details

All

nt Edit WinTR-2								·····
		V	Vatersk	ned Peo	ik Tabl	e		<u>C</u> lose
ccs			Dad's far					
			ield near H County, N	-				
		Wate	ershed Peak	Table				
Sub-Area or Reach	Pe: 2-Yr	ak Flow by 5-Yr				100-Yr	1-72	
[dentifier								
SUBAREAS								
	28.84	43.41	54.16	63.74	74.71	85.70	21.18	
REACHES								
DUTLET	28.84	43.41	54.16	63.74	74.71	85.70	21.18	
_								
]]								
1								

Step 7: To save the data, she returns to the Win TR-55 Main Window by clicking Close on the File Display window and Close on the Output Definitions Summary window. She then clicks File on the Menu Bar and SaveAs. In the Save a WinTR-55 data file as... popup window, she specifies a file name (Ex 3-till for corn, conventional tillage) and clicks Save. The data are now saved, the popup window closes, and the WinTR-55 Main Window is redisplayed.

Save a WinTR-S	i5 data file as .					? 🗙
Save in:	📄 Sample Files		•	(-	💣 🎟 •	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents	Example-1A.w5	5				
My Computer						
My Network Places	File name: Save as type:	Ex3-till WinTR-55 Data Files(*.w55)			•	Save Cancel

Part 2 Results

Conventional tillage discharge

Frequency	1-year	2-year	5-year	10-year	25-year	50-year	100-year
Discharge	$21.2 ext{ ft}^3/s$	$28.8 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$43.4 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	$54.2 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$63.7 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	$74.7 \; {\rm ft^{3}/s}$	$85.7 \text{ ft}^{3/s}$
Volume*	1.4 in	1.8 in	2.8 in	3.5 in	4.2 in	4.9 in	5.7 in

* The Runoff Volume is available from the **File Display** window by selecting View and **WinTR-20 Printed Page File**.

Part 3 Determine peak discharge and runoff volume 'with crop residue management' condition

Rather than beginning with a completely new file to determine the peak discharge and runoff volume for the crop residue condition, Branwen decides to edit the existing condition data file previously created and save it under a different name.

Step 1: She starts the WinTR–55 Program and opens the Existing Conditions file by selecting **Open** from the **File** menu and locating the file using the **Open a WinTR–55 data file** popup window.

She may also go into the pulldown choice list under File and select Ex 3-till.w55 from the last files used displayed in the history list.

🚟 WinTR-55 Main Window	
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help	
C'New	
G ^{Open}	
- Save	
SaveAs	
D Page Setup	
Exit	
C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Ex 3-till.w55	
C:\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Ex4.w55	
C:\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Ex 3-residue.w55	
C:\WinTR-55\Sample Files\Ex3-till.w55	

Open a WinTR-	i5 data file			? 🛛
Look in:	🗁 Sample Files	•	← 🗈 💣 📰 -	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	Ex 3-residue.w55 Ex 3-till.w55 Ex 4-historical.w55 Ex 4-Type 2.w55 Example1-A.w55 Example1-B.w55 Example1-C.w55 Example2-large.w55			
My Network Places	File name: Ex 3-till.w Files of type: WinTR-5	55 5 Data Files (*.w55)	• •	Open Cancel

Step 2: Branwen edits the Subtitle and the Sub-area Name to reflect crop residue conditions. She will need to

also edit the CN and Tc to account for the new practice. Clicking the **Land Use Details** button, **(**, opens the **Land Use Details** window.

📟 WinTR-55 Main Wi										
· · · · ·	•									
🖻 🖬 🚭 👤 Ta I	ĕ∎⊜ Qīc⊾V ¥ ¥%A 🕺 ∰⊾ ?									
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology										
Project Identification Data				•			-			
User: bmd	S	tate:	Maryland			•				
Project: Dad's farm	C	ounty:	Talbot			•				
Subtitle: cornfield near Bug Creek with crop residue Execution Date: 4/17/2002										
Sub-areas are expresse Acres Square Miles										
Cub and Estimated Current		fall Distri	bution Identifier	: Type II						
Sub-area Entry and Summ	ib-area Description		rea Flows to ch/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)				
corn1 new field	d by Bug Creek	Outlet	-	12.50	84	0.100				
			Project Area:	12.50 (ac)						
File: C:\Documents and Sett	tings\quan.quan\Applic	ation Da	ata\WinTR-55\	Sample Fi 3	/31/2006	9:08 AM	- /			

She edits the land use and clicks <u>A</u>ccept to return to WinTR–55 Main Window.

	a Name		I and I	lse Deta		
corn1 ne	w <u>R</u> ename (Djear	Lana C	se Den	uis	
Land Use	e Categories					
🖲 Urb	oan Area 🛛 🔿 Developing Urban	C Cultivated Agr	iculture 🛛 O	ther Agricultu	re 🔿 Arid I	Rangeland
			Area (Acres)) for Hydrologic	Soil Groups	
	Cover Description	Condition /	A CN B		CN CN	D CN 4
			· · ·			
	TED AGRICULTURAL LANDS					
allow	Bare soil		77	86	91	94
allow	Crop residue (CR)	poor	76	85	90	93
allow	Crop residue (CR)	good	74	83	88	90
Row crop	Straight row (SR)	poor	72	81	88	91
	Straight row (SR)	good	67	78	85	89
	SR + Crop residue	poor	71	80	87	90
	SR + Crop residue	good	64	75 1	1.000 82	85
	Contoured (C)	poor	70	79	84	88
	Contoured (C)	good	65	75	82	86
	C + Crop residue	poor	69	78	83	87
	C + Crop residue	good	64	74	81	85
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	poor	66	74	80	82
	Cont & terraced(C&T)	good	62	71	78	81

The sub-area area and the new runoff curve number now appear in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR–55 Main Window.

📟 WinTR-55 Main W							×		
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help									
¥∎⊜ _to ¥ ¥ ¥%A 🐔 💷 ?									
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology									
Project Identification Dat							1		
User: bmd State: Maryland									
Project: Dad's farm	C	ounty:	Talbot			•			
Subtitle: comfield nee	ar Bug Creek with crop	residue	:	Exec	cution Date: 4	/17/2002			
Sub-areas are express Acres Square Miles Sub-area Entry and Sum	C Square Miles Storm Data Source: Talbot County, MD (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II								
	5ub-area Description		rea Flows to ch/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)			
corn1 new fie	eld by Bug Creek	Outlet	-	12.50	81	0.100			
corn1 new field by Bug Creek Outlet ▼ 12.50 81 0.100 Project Area: 12.50 (ac)									

Step 3: Branwen opens the **Time of Concentration Details** window and edits the data (assuming her Dad will have greater than 20% residue) to compute the new sub-area time of concentration. Clicking <u>Accept</u> returns her to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

Sub-area Name 2-Year Rainfall (in) corn1 new Rename Clear 2-Year Rainfall (in) Time of Concentration Details										
Length (ft)	Slope (ft/ft)	Surface (Manning's n)	n	Area (ft²)	WP (ft)	Velocity (f/s)	Time (hr)			
100	0.1000	Cultivated>20% residue (0.17) 💌			3.6		0.092			
858	0.1000	Unpaved 🗸	ľ				0.047			
131	0.0950	Unpaved 🗸					0.007			
1,089						2.0719	0.146			
Image: Provide the second s										
	Length (ft) 100 858 131	Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) 100 0.1000 858 0.1000 131 0.0950	Rename Clear 3.4 T Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) Surface (Manning's n) 100 0.1000 Cultivated > 20% residue (0.17) 858 0.1000 Unpaved 131 0.0950 Unpaved	Rename Clear 3.4 Time Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) Surface (Manning's n) n 100 0.1000 Cultivated > 20% residue (0.17) • 858 0.1000 Unpaved • 131 0.0950 Unpaved •	Rename Clear 3.4 Time of Con Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) Surface (Manning's n) n Area (ft*) 100 0.1000 Cultivated > 20% residue (0.17) • 858 0.1000 Unpaved • 131 0.0950 Unpaved • 1,089 • • •	Rename Clear 3.4 Time of Concentra Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) Surface (Manning's n) n Area (ft*) WP (ft) 100 0.1000 Cultivated > 20% residue (0.17) • • • 858 0.1000 Unpaved • • • • 131 0.0950 Unpaved • • • • 1,089 • • • • • • •	Rename Clear 3.4 Time of Concentration D Length (ft) Slope (ft/ft) Surface (Manning's n) n Area (ft*) WP (ft) Velocity (f/s) 100 0.1000 Cultivated > 20% residue (0.17) 858 0.1000 Unpaved 131 0.0950 Unpaved 1,089 2.0719			

The sub-area time of concentration now appears in the Sub-area Entry and Summary portion of the WinTR-55 Main Window.

Step 4: Branwen saves her data now using SaveAs to give it a new name (Ex3-residue), and then clicks the Run WinTR-55 button to open the Run WinTR-55 window. The program saves the storm events for which the last run was made, so she can click Run to execute the run. When the run is complete, the File Display window opens showing the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. She can click WinTR-20 Reports or WinTR-55 Reports and select the reports to view. When complete, she clicks the Close button to close the File Display window and return to the WinTR-55 Main Window.

🚟 WinTR-55 Main Winde	DW									
File Options ProjectData (File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help									
🛎 🖪 🚳 👤 To 🔺	¥88 Q To 🔺 🍸 🦉 🎢 🗠 🕺 🏛 🖺 🤗									
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology										
Project Identification Data —										
User: bmd	Sta	ate:	Maryland			•				
Project: Dad's farm	Co	ounty:	Talbot			-				
Subtitle: cornfield near Bug Creek with crop residue Execution Date: 4/17/2002										
Sub-areas are expressed in Acres Square Miles Sub-area Entry and Summary	C Square Miles Storm Data Source: Talbot County, MD (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II									
Sub-area Name Sub-a	rea Description	on Sub-area Flows to A		Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)				
corn1 new field by	Bug Creek (Outlet	-	12.50	81	0.146				
File: C:\Documents and Settings			Project Area:		1/31/2006	9:11 AM				

Part 3 Results

Branwen can now carry these results to her Dad and demonstrate the advantages of residue in reducing flows from his corn field.

Crop Residue Tillage Discharge

Frequency	1-year	2-year	5-year	10-year	25-year	50-year	100-year
Discharge	$15.8 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$22.4 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$35.0 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$44.6 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$53.0 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$62.7 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$72.4 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$
Volume*	1.2 in	1.6 in	2.5 in	3.2 in	3.9 in	4.6 in	5.4 in

* The Runoff Volume is available from the File Display window by selecting View and WinTR-20 Printed Page File.

Step 5: Summary of Results

Crop Residue vs. Conventional Tillage Discharge

Frequency	1-year	2-year	5-year	10-year	25-year	50-year	100-year
Discharge (conv. tillage)	$21.2 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$28.8 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	43.4 ft ³ /s	$54.2 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	$63.7 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	74.7 ft ³ /s	85.7 ft ³ /s
Volume (conv. tillage)	1.4 in	1.8 in	2.8 in	3.5 in	4.2 in	4.9 in	5.7 in
Discharge (residue)	$15.8 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$22.4 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	35.0 ft ³ /s	$44.6 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	$53.0 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	$62.7 \text{ ft}^3/\text{s}$	$72.4 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$
Volume (residue)	1.2 in	1.6 in	2.5 in	3.2 in	3.9 in	4.6 in	5.4 in
Discharge decrease (w/residue)	5.4 ft ³ /s	$6.4 { m ft}^3/{ m s}$	$8.4 \text{ ft}^{3}/\text{s}$	9.6 ft ³ /s	$10.7 \text{ ft}^{3/s}$	12.0 ft ³ /s	13.3 ft ³ /s
Volume decrease (w/residue)	0.2 in	0.2 in	0.3 in	0.3 in	0.3 in	0.3 in	0.3 in

Example 4

Custom Rainfall Distribution

Background

Minor Lake Subdivision in Champaign County, Illinois, has an existing stormwater detention basin designed with the 100-year rainfall amount and the Type II rainfall distribution. A nearby watershed recently experienced a 7-inch, 24-hour storm for which hourly precipitation data are available. A local hydraulic engineer estimated the recurrence interval of this event to be 110 years.

The local homeowners want to know how their existing detention basin would perform during such an event. For comparison purposes, the engineer completed a 100-year Type II distribution design analysis first. The historical event was analyzed second.

Watershed and basin data

The existing hydrologic design listed the drainage area as 25 acres of 0.25-acre residential lots on hydrologic soil group B soils – curve number 75. The time of concentration had been computed at 0.45 hours. The 100-year rainfall depth is 6.61 inches.

The existing detention basin has a surface area of 2.0 acres at the spillway crest. The surface area is 2.4 acres at 3 feet above the spillway crest. The inlet crest of the 15-inch diameter pipe is 3.5 feet above the outlet.

Existing Conditions – Type II Rainfall Distribution

Step 1: Enter the existing data on the **WinTR–55 Main Window**, **Structure Data** window, and **Reach Data** window.

🚟 WinTR-55 Main Window						X				
File Options ProjectData GlobalData R	un Help									
¥88 • TONY ¥ ¥14 1 m 1										
WinTR-55 Small Watershed Hydrology										
Project Identification Data						1				
User: KKV	State:	Illinois			-					
Project: Minor Lake Detention Check	County:	Champaign			•					
Subtitle: Analyze detention basin with T	Subtitle: Analyze detention basin with Type II distribution Execution Date: 3/31/2006									
Sub-areas are expressed in: Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph: <standard> Acres Storm Data Source: Champaign County, IL (NRCS) Rainfall Distribution Identifier: Type II</standard>										
Sub-area Entry and Summary	nainiai Disu	Ducion ruenche	. туре н			1				
Sub-area Name Sub-area Descripti	on I	irea Flows to ich/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)					
Minor Lake 0.25 acre lots	basin	-	25.00	75	0.450					
Project Area: 25 (ac)										
File: <new file=""></new>				/31/2006	9:17 AM	-				

Structu								
Structure det pond		✓ CLea	<u>D</u> elete <u>R</u>	ename	Stru	icture	Data	
		Po	nd Surface Area @spillwayc	rest	2.0	acres	Accept	
	(optional)	3	feet above spillw		2.4	acres	<u>P</u> lot Cancel	
		Disc	harge Description	1				
- Spillwa		iameter(in) Trial #1	Trial #2 T	rial #3		Height (ft) ert to spillway	/ <u>H</u> elp	
© Pip © We		15		nai #3		3.5	?	
Orifice flow assumed								
		Pipe Flo	w Rating - de	et pond				
Stage (ft) 0.00	Diameter1 Pipe Head <u>(ft)</u> 2.875	Flow <u>cfs</u> 0.000		ow Pipe	meter3 (in e Head (<u>ft) _</u>) Flo w 	Temporary Storage <u>(ac-ft)</u> 0.00	
0.63 1.25	3.500 4.125	11.020 11.964					1.28 2.60	
2.50	5.375	13.657					5.42	
6.25 12.50	9.125 15.375	17.794 23.097					15.10 35.42	
e: knew fil	A)					3/31/2006	9:18 AM	

Reach Data							
		Re	each l	Data			
Reach Name	Receiving Reach	Reach Length (ft)	Manning n	Friction Slope (ft/ft)	Bottom Width (ft)	Average Side Slopes	Structure Name
basin	Outlet 💌						det pond 📃 💌
					<u> </u>	telp <u>P</u> lot	<u>C</u> ancel <u>A</u> ccept
					9	<u>R</u> eo	ch Flow Path
e: <new file=""></new>						3/31/20	06 9:19 AM

The resulting flow path schematic is shown.

Reach Flow Path			
Project (Minor Lake Dete		1	
Blue - Reaches	Green - Su	Ibareas	Red - Structures
Click on 'Outlet' for mor	e information.	🧖 Detail	<u>H</u> elp <u>C</u> lose

Step 2:Go to the Global Data menu on the WinTR-55 Main Window and select Storm Data. On the StormData window, click the NRCS Storm Data button to choose the NRCS Champaign County rainfall data.Note that the Type II rainfall distribution is the default distribution.

😇 Storm Data										
Storm Data										
Champaign County, IL (NRCS) To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Champaign County, IL, click on the command button below.	Rainfall Return Period (yr)	24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)								
NRCS Storm Data Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: Type II Type II	2 5 10 25 50 100	3.01 3.71 4.26 5.04 5.83 6.61								
P Help Cancel Accept File: <new file=""> 3/31</new>	J	2.47								

Step 3: Click the <u>Accept</u> button to accept the data and return to the **WinTR-55 Main Window**. Save this data as Ex 4-Type 2. Run the 100-year design storm.

🖤 File Display							
Pri	nt Edit Win	TR-20 Reports WinTR-55 Reports Help					
		Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	<u>C</u> lose				
	KKV	Minor Lake Detention Check Analyze detention basin with Type II distribution Champaign County, Illinois	^				
		Kydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table					
	Sub-Area or Reach Identifier	Peak Flow and Peak Time (hr) by Rainfall Return Period 100-Yr (cfs) (hr)					
	SUBAREAS Minor Lake	89.59 12.15	=				
	REACHES basin Down	89.59 12.15 12.58 12.98					
	OVTLET	12.58	 Image: A start of the start of				
C:\	C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\tr55rpts.out 3/31/2006 9:21 AM						

Step 4: The first report to display after computing a run is the Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table. However, if peak discharge is the only variable of interest, the Watershed Peak Table is less confusing because it omits the peak time and shows only the peak discharge. Using the Type II rainfall distribution, the peak flow from the Minor Lake Watershed area is nearly 90 cubic feet per second into the basin. The flow out of the basin is approximately 13 cubic feet per second. To look at the respective 100-year design hydrographs, click the Hydrographs icon on the WinTR-55 Main Window. Select the Sub-areas segment type, Minor Lake and Outlet Sub-areas, the 100-year storm, and click on the Plot button to produce the graph.

🚺 Output Graphics 🛛 🛛 🔀								
Output Graphics								
Select Segment Type	Alternatives							
Subarea(s)	🔿 Reach(es)	▼ Trial #1						
- Select Subarea(s)	Select Storm(s) -	Trial #2						
Minor Lake	☑ 100-Yr	Trial #3						
		Reach Hydrograph						
		🔽 Upstream						
		Downstream						
		🥐 <u>H</u> elp						
		<u>P</u> lot <u>C</u> lose						

The short-duration, highly-peaked line hydrograph is from subdivision houses; the long, low line represents outflow from the basin.



Enter historic rainfall distribution

Step 1 Since the data for running the 100-year Type II storm has been saved in the file Ex 4-Type 2, open this file (if it is not already open), and save it as Ex 4-historical. This new file will be edited to provide a run on the historical storm. Click the Custom Rainfall Distributions icon on the WinTR-55 Main Window, and enter the recorded hourly rainfall distribution as shown below. The values are a ratio of the total rainfall. For example, 0.21 inches of rain fell during the first hour, so the first data point after 0 is 0.03000 (0.21/7 = 0.03).

84	Custom I	Rainfall D	istributio	n				
	Cust	om Ro	infall	Distr	ibutio	n		
Lo	ocal Distrib	ution(s):						
Historical Storm Rename Delete								
	Historical St Time Incre 24-hr Raint	ment (hr):	1.	# Po	oints 25			
	0.00000	0.03000	0.06000	0.09000	0.12000	-		
	0.15000	0.19000	0.23000	0.27000	0.32000	F		
	0.38000	0.45000	0.57000	0.70000	0.79000			
	0.85000	0.89000	0.92000	0.95000	0.96000			
	0.97000	0.98000	0.99000	0.99500	1.00000			
						-		
Plot Done								
C:1	Documents	and Setting	s\Quan.Qua	an/Applicatio	on Data\Wir	nTR-		

The plot shows how the rainfall was distributed during the 24-hour storm.



Step 2 Now that the custom rainfall distribution has been entered and saved, click on the Storm Data icon on the WinTR-55 Main Window. Select the previously defined distribution, Historical Storm, from the pull-down list for distribution types. Enter 7.00 inches for the 110-year rainfall on the right side of the window.

🖲 Storm Data								
Storm Data								
User-provided custom storm data To replace these storm data with those compiled by the NRCS for Talbot County, MD, click on the command button below. <u>NRCS Storm Data</u> Please select a rainfall distribution type from the list below. The list includes the standard WinTR-20 / WinTR-55 types and any number of user-defined distributions. Rainfall Distribution Type: <u>Historical Storm</u> <u>Edit</u>	Rainfall Return Period (yr)24-Hr Rainfall Amount (in)11071101 <trr>110<td< th=""></td<></trr>							
Image: Point of the second								
File: <new file=""> 5/19.</new>	3/2008 10:49 AM							

Step 3 Click the <u>Accept</u> button to close the **Storm Data** window and return to the **WinTR–55 Main Window**.

📟 WinTR-55 Main	Window					×			
File Options ProjectData GlobalData Run Help									
28 8 9 1	Tc 🔺 🎸 👻 🥨	۶ 🕂 ۲		2					
Wi	nTR-55 Sma	II Waters	hed Hy	<mark>drolog</mark> y	1				
Project Identification I	Data								
User: KKV	S	tate: Illinois			•				
Project: Minor Lak	e Detention Check	ounty: Champaign	1		•				
Subtitle: Analyze de	etention basin with histor	ical storm	Ex	ecution Date: 3	/31/2006				
- Sub-areas are expre	essed in: Dime	ensionless Unit Hydro	graph: <mark>«stan</mark>	dard>	-				
 Acres Square Miles 		m Data Source: Use	•		ıta.				
	Rain	fall Distribution Identi	ier: Historic	al Storm					
Sub-area Entry and S	iummary								
Sub-area Name	Sub-area Description	Sub-area Flows to Reach/Outlet	Area (ac)	Weighted CN	Tc (hr)				
Minor Lake	0.25 acre lots	basin	25.00	75	0.450				
		Project Are	ea: 25 (ac)						
File: <new file=""></new>				3/31/2006	9:31 AM	- /			

Step 4 The storm data source now reads User-provided custom storm data. Click the **Run** icon to compute the hydrographs using the historical rainfall distribution and depth.

QØ	🛛 🗐 🖾						
Pr	int Edit	WinTR-20 Reports WinTR-55 Reports Help					
		Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table	<u>C</u> lose				
	KKV	Minor Lake Detention Check Analyze detention basin with historical storm Champaign County, Illinois	^				
		Hydrograph Peak/Peak Time Table					
	Sub-Area or Reach Identifie	110-Yr r (cfs) (hr)					
	SUBAREAS Minor Lak	e 18.09 13.04					
	REACHES						
	basin Down	18.09 13.04 11.48					
		14.29					
	OVTLET	11.48					
	n		~				
C:1	C:\Documents and Settings\quan.quan\Application Data\WinTR-55\tr55rpts.out 10/20/2008 1:16 PM						

Step 5 The historical peak is estimated at 18 cubic feet per second from Minor Lake sub-area. The detention basin lowers the peak to approximately 11.5 cubic feet per second. The hydrographs are plotted next.

The jagged line represents the flow from the subdivision and into the basin. The more rounded line represents the estimated outflow from the detention basin during the historical rainfall event.



Step 6 If detailed information is needed, such as a table of hydrograph points, go to the Output Definition window, and view any report to open the File Display window. Click WinTR-20 Printed Page File to see the tabulated hydrograph. This WinTR-20 printed page report is a text file in the WinTR-55 subdirectory labeled tr20.out.

it Edit WinT	R-20 Reports	WinTR-55 Repor	rts Help					
		WinT	R-20 I	Printed f	Page F	ile	ſ	<u>C</u> lose
	Ani	Minor alyze detenti		ntion Check with histori	cal stor	n		^
		Name o:	f printed p TR20.out					
				STORM 110-Y	r			
Area or	Drainage	Rain Gage	Runoff		Peak I	low		
Reach	Area	ID or	Amount	Elevation	Time	Rate	Rate	
[dentifier	(sq mi)	Location	(in)	(ft)	(hr)	(cfs)	(csm)	
Minor Lake	0.039		4.149		13.04	18.09	463.01	
Line								
Start Time		Flow Va	alues @ tip	me increment	of 0.02	28 hr		
(hr)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	
3.544	0.05	0.07	0.08	0.09	0.11	0.12	0.14	
3.743	0.15	0.17	0.18	0.20	0.22	0.23	0.25	
3.942	0.27	0.28	0.30	0.32	0.34	0.35	0.37	
4.141	0.39	0.40	0.42	0.44	0.45	0.47	0.48	
4.340	0.50	0.52	0.53	0.55	0.57	0.58	0.60	
4.539	0.61	0.63	0.64	0.66	0.68	0.69	0.71	
4.738	0.72	0.74	0.75	0.77	0.78	0.80	0.81	
4 937	0 83	0 94	0 86	0 87	0 29	0 91	0 93	

Results

The peak inflow to the existing stormwater detention basin was reduced from the 90 cubic feet per second for the Type II design storm down to 18 cubic feet per second for the historical storm. This dramatic peak flow reduction is due to the less intense historical rainfall distribution. The peak discharge decreased even though the rainfall depth increased slightly from 6.6-inch design depth to 7-inch historical depth.

However, the peak outflow from the detention basin is reduced only slightly, from 13 cubic feet per second to 11 cubic feet per second. Therefore, this analysis demonstrates that the existing stormwater detention basin would have performed adequately during the historical storm event that occurred in the nearby watershed.

Appendix B

Equations

Runoff equation

$$Q = \frac{\left[P - 0.2\left(\frac{1000}{CN} - 10\right)\right]^2}{P + 0.8\left(\frac{1000}{CN} - 10\right)}$$

where:

Q = runoff (in) P = rainfall (in) CN = runoff curve number

Weighted Curve Number (CN)

$$\mathrm{CN}_{\mathrm{w}} = \frac{\sum \left(\mathrm{A}_{\mathrm{x}} \times \mathrm{CN}_{\mathrm{x}}\right)}{\sum \mathrm{A}_{\mathrm{x}}}$$

where:

 CN_w = weighted curve number A_x = area of land use-soil complex CN_x = curve number of land use-soil complex

Composite CN (connected impervious area)

$$\mathrm{CN}_{\mathrm{c}} = \mathrm{CN}_{\mathrm{p}} + \left(\frac{\mathrm{P}_{\mathrm{im}}}{100}\right) (98 - \mathrm{CN}_{\mathrm{p}})$$

where:

 $CN_c = composite runoff curve number$ $<math>CN_p = pervious runoff curve number$ $P_{im} = percent imperviousness$

Composite CN (unconnected w/<30% impervious)

$${\rm CN}_{\rm c} = {\rm CN}_{\rm p} + \left(\frac{{\rm P}_{\rm im}}{100}\right) \! \left(98 - {\rm CN}_{\rm p}\right) \! \left(1 - 0.5 {\rm R}\right) \label{eq:cn_c}$$

where:

R = ratio of unconnected impervious area to total impervious area

Sheet flow

$$\mathrm{T_{t}} = \frac{0.007 \left(n\mathrm{L}\right)^{0.8}}{\left(\mathrm{P_{2}}\right)^{0.5} \mathrm{S}^{0.4}}$$

where:

- T_{t} = travel time (hr)
- n = Manning's roughness coefficient (for sheet flow)

$$L = flow length (ft)$$

- $P_2 = 2$ -year, 24-hour rainfall (in)
- S = slope of hydraulic grade line (land slope, ft/ft)

Shallow concentrated flow

$$V = 16.1345\sqrt{S} \qquad (Unpaved)$$

$$V = 20.3282 \sqrt{S}$$
 (Paved)

where:

- V = average velocity (ft/s)
- S = slope of hydraulic grade line (watercourse slope, ft/ft)

These two equations are based on a solution of the Manning's equation with different assumptions for n (Manning's roughness coefficient) and r (hydraulic radius, ft). For unpaved areas, n is 0.05 and r is 0.4; for paved areas, n is 0.025 and r is 0.2.

Channel flow (Manning's *n* equation)

$$V = \frac{1.49r^{\frac{2}{3}}\sqrt{S}}{n}$$

where:

- V = average velocity (ft/s)
- $r = hydraulic radius (ft) and is equal to a/p_w$
- a = cross sectional flow area (ft²)
- $p_w =$ wetted perimeter (ft)
- S = slope of hydraulic grade line (channel slope, ft/ft)
- n = Manning's roughness coefficient (for open channel flow)

Channel rating equations

 $TW = BW + (2 \times Stage \times Z)$

$$EA = \frac{(BW + TW)}{2} \times Stage$$

$$WP = BW + 2 \times \sqrt{\left(\frac{TW - BW}{2}\right)^2 + \left(Stage\right)^2}$$
How
$$= \frac{1.486}{2} \times EA^{\frac{5}{3}} \times \sqrt{\frac{Friction \ slope}{2}}$$

$$Flow_{channel} = \frac{1.480}{Manning's n} \times EA^{\frac{3}{3}} \times \frac{\sqrt{PRCUORS}}{WP^{\frac{2}{3}}}$$

where:

EA	=	end area, ft^2
$\mathrm{Flow}_{\mathrm{channel}}$	=	ft ³ /s
TW	=	top width, ft
BW	=	bottom width, ft
Stage	=	ft
WP	=	wetted perimeter, ft
Z	=	side slope, dimensionless
Friction slope	=	no units

Storage rating equations

Temporary storage

$$\begin{split} \text{Storage}_{\text{temporary}} &= \text{Stage} \times \left(\frac{\left(2 \times \textbf{A}_{\text{crest}} \right) + \left(\text{Stage} \times \Delta \right)}{2} \right) \\ \Delta &= \frac{\left(\textbf{A}_{\text{above crest}} \right) - \left(\textbf{A}_{\text{crest}} \right)}{\left(\text{Ht}_{\text{above crest}} \right)} \end{split}$$

where:

Δ	=	delta, ft
$\operatorname{Ht}_{\operatorname{above crest}}$	=	ft
Stage	=	ft
A	=	acre
A _{above crest}	=	acre
Storage	=	acre-ft

Short tube flow (for analyzing pipe flows)

$$\begin{aligned} \text{Head}_{\text{pipe}} &= \text{Height} + \text{Stage} - \frac{\text{D}_{\text{pipe}}}{24} \\ \text{A}_{\text{pipe}} &= \pi \left(\frac{\text{D}_{\text{pipe}}}{24}\right)^2 \end{aligned}$$

 $Flow_{pipe} = A_{pipe}c_d\sqrt{2gHead_{pipe}}$

For g = gravity and $c_d = 0.6$

$$\text{Flow}_{\text{pipe}} = 4.81 \times \text{A}_{\text{pipe}} \sqrt{\text{Head}_{\text{pipe}}}$$

where: Height = ft Head_{pipe} = ft Stage = ft D_{pipe} = in A_{pipe} = ft² Flow_{pipe} = ft³/s

Weir flow

$$Flow_{broad-crested weir} = 2.8 \times L_{weir} \times Stage^{1.5}$$

For V-notch weir:

$$Flow_{90^{\circ}V-notch\,weir} = 2.5 \times Stage^{2.5}$$

where:

Storage indication structure routing

 $\Delta s = (I-O)\Delta t$

where:

 $\Delta s = change in storage$

O = outflow

 $\Delta t = time interval$

Appendix C

References

- Chow, V.T., D.R. Maidment, and L.W. Mays. 1988. Applied Hydrology. McGraw-Hill, 586 pp.
- Maidment, D.R. ed. 1993. Handbook of hydrology. McGraw-Hill, 1422 pp.
- Merkel, W.H. 2001. Sheetflow references (References on time of concentration with respect to sheetflow length). http://www.wsi.nrcs.usda.gov/ products/W2Q/H&H/Tools_Models/WinTR55. html.
- Ponce, V.M. 1989. Engineering hydrology. Prentice Hall, 640 pp.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Hydrologic Engineering Center, HEC–RAS User's Manual, Version 3.1.3.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. National Engineering Handbook, Part 630 Hydrology (*http://directives. sc.egov.usda.gov/viewDirective.aspx?id=2572*).
 - Chapter 1: Introduction (PDF 52kB) 1997
 - Chapter 2: Procedures (PDF 215kB) 1999
 - Chapter 3: Preliminary Investigations (PDF 75kB) 1999
 - Chapter 4: Storm Rainfall Depth (PDF 155kB) 1993
 - Chapter 5: Streamflow Data (PDF 120kB) 1997
 - Chapter 6: Stream Reaches and Hydrologic Units (PDF 84kB) 1998
 - Chapter 7: Hydrologic Soil Groups (PDF 352kB) 2007
 - Chapter 8: Land Use and Treatment Classes (PDF 110kB) 2002
 - Chapter 9: Hydrologic Soil-Cover Complexes (PDF 505kB) 2004
 - Chapter 10: Estimation of Direct Runoff from Storm Rainfall (PDF 306kB) 2004
 - Chapter 11: Snowmelt (PDF 602kB) 2004
 - Chapter 12: Hydrologic Effects of Land Use and Treatment (PDF 246kB) 2000
 - Chapter 13: Stage Inundation Relations (PDF 305kB) 2007
 - Chapter 14: Stage-Discharge Relationships (original) (PDF 3.33MB) 1972
 - Chapter 15: Travel Time, Time of Concentration, and Lag (original) (PDF 861kB) 1972
 - Chapter 16: Hydrographs (PDF 510kB) 2007
 - Chapter 17: Flood Routing (original) (PDF 5.39kB) 1972

- Chapter 18: Selected Statistical Methods (PDF 357kB) 2000
- Chapter 19: Transmission Losses (PDF 182MB) 2007
- Chapter 20: Watershed Yield (original) (PDF 841kB) 1971
- Chapter 21: Design Hydrographs (original) (PDF 7.31kB) 1972
- Chapter 22: Glossary (original) (PDF 537kB) 1971
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2005a. SITES water resource site analysis computer program user guide. 469 pp.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2005b (draft). WinTR–20 system user documentation, 105 pp.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1986. Urban hydrology for small watersheds. Technical Release 55, 156 pp.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1975. Urban hydrology for small watersheds. Technical Release 55, 91 pp.
- Welle, P.I., D.E. Woodward, and H. Fox Moody. 1980. A dimensionless unit hydrograph for the Delmarva Peninsula. 1980. Paper No. 80–2013, ASAE Summer Meeting, 18 pp.